
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Thursday 25 March 2010 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 5, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Mark Versallion  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Ashok Kulkarni 
Janet Mote 
Anthony Seymour 
Dinesh Solanki 
Yogesh Teli 
 

Ms Nana Asante 
B E Gate (VC) 
Phillip O'Dell 
Mrs Rekha Shah 
 

Christopher Noyce 
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. John Cowan 
2. Manji Kara 
3. Jeremy Zeid 
4. Mrs Vina Mithani 
5. Stanley Sheinwald 
6. Julia Merison 
 

1. Mitzi Green 
2. Mrs Margaret Davine 
3. Thaya Idaikkadar 
4. Keeki Thammaiah 
 

1. Paul Scott 
 

 
 

Contact:  Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 25 March 2010 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2010 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 8. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 9. 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny 

Procedure Rule 10. 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 
8. SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2009/10   (Pages 7 - 28) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Partnership Development and Performance. 

 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 25 March 2010 

9. INFORMATION REPORT - EXTENDED SCHOOLS REVIEW - SIX MONTH 
UPDATE   (Pages 29 - 132) 

 
 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 

 
10. INFORMATION REPORT -  STRATEGY FOR PEOPLE 2010-2012   (Pages 133 - 

176) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources and Development.  

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	���������� �������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�


	������
���	��������




�������
�

��
�������
����

�
�
��������	� �� ���	
���������� ��!����	�
� � �
�
����
��	� �� �!�"�	��#!�	���

�� $�%�&����
�� ��	'�(����)�*�
�� ��	��������
�� �+�!��,+���"��
���
�

-� �+��,�./0����
�� ��!�1��+���+�+�
�� 0	�!+�����	��
�� 2�3�!+�4���
�� �������5���)6*�
�

�������������	�
��
����
����
�

�� �����.!���	�
�

�	���������	������

�� 0�	���!��������,��!�	��
)�*7�)6*�0�	����
���3�������1�!��8��������!�
-� 0�	���!��,���3�!���
�8���
�
�

����� ��������������������������������
�
�� !"#�$	� � 4�� 	���� �+�� ����	��	
�� ��� �+!�����	3� ��� �+�� �����9	3� �����
�,,�	����1�!��8��������!:��
�
.��	������������
�

1�!��8���������
�

���	
�����#!+���(�����	� ���	
������������5���
���	
�����#	�+�	���������� ���	
�������	'�(����
�

��%�� $�������
���
&������������
�
�� !"#�$	� �4��	���� �+��� �+����9����	����
������	!���� 	����!�!���������
������!�	�������	�����+����!	�!!����������	!�
��������+!�����	3;�
�

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 6 

1



�

������� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	����������

��'�� ����������
�
4+����+���	���!�����+������	3�+�����	��<�"�8������������������	��!������
�	��!3	����!���
����
����
���;�
�

��(�� )�����*�����
��+�)�����
�������$�,�����
�����
�
�� !"#�$	��4��	�����+���	��,���
�=��!��	!7�,����	!������,�����	!�9����
,������ �+������	3��	�����+��,��8!�	!����.8��8�9��	���
���	�����
������
1���!�>7����	�����)������������+����	!�����	*���!,�
�8���;�
�

��-�� ��&��������&�
���
���������!������
��������.)�������
�
�� !"#�$	��4��	�����+����+����9����	��������	
�!;�
�
�� !"#�$��/�� ���
�

��0�� ��������1����,
�����
�
4+�� �+����	� 	������� ������!� �+��7� !	
�� �+�� ��!�� ����	3� ��� �+��
������������7�+��+������	�������7���3��+���9�+��+�� 
���+����	7��	��+��
���,��+�	!8��#����#!!�!!��	���	�����������8��;�
�
�� !"#�$	��4+����+��8��������,�������	����;�
�

����� !���
���
&������
�,����������������������������
�
������!� ��
�8��� �� ��,���� !���	3� ���� ?����9@!� ��!���!� ���� �+�� ��!��
���,��+�	!8�� #���� #!!�!!��	�� )�##*7� 9+
+� 9�!� ,���!+��� �	�
��0�
���������������+��#��������!!�	;�
�
4+�� ��������� ?������ ���� ��������	
�7� �����	
���	� �	�� ���,������
���8
�!�����	��� �+��+����	���##���!���!7� �+�� �,��8���	��!	
�� �+����#�
)���,��+�	!8�� ��������	
�� #!!�!!��	�*7� �	�� �+�� 
�	������	� ���
�,��8���	�� 	� �+�� ���8���� �3�	!�� 
��,������ ,�����!� �	�� �+�� ���	
��
A�,��8���	�����3�����;�
�
4+�� ��������� ?������ �B,��	��� �+��� �+���� 9���� �9�� �����	�!� ��� �+�� �##�
'��3���	�:��
�
•� �+��#����#!!�!!��	��9+
+�9�!�	���!
������	��9�!���
����	������	�

!���	3�+!��	��9���	�!!�!�)&���	��	��1������3!*C�
�
•� �+��.�3�	!���	���#!!�!!��	��9+
+�9�!�!
����;�
�
?����9�+����
+�8�����6��	��+���!!�!!��	������+�����	
�������+����!�����;��
A��9�!��+�����	
�@!������	�����
+�8�:�
�
•� ���!�������!���
�!��!!�!!��	��!
�������6C�
�

2



�

��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	���������� ���<���

•� ��8	3� �+�� �+���� D���=����@� !
���!� ���� #����� ���8
�!� ��� D,������	3�
9���@C�

�
•� ���
�	!����+�9� ����
+�8����!
��������� 	� �+��.�!�����!!�!!��	�����


+����	@!�!��8
�!;��
�
E����9�!��	3�	3�����B,�����+�9��+�!�������	!�
���������
+�8��;�
�
A	���!,�	!�����=��!��	!7�������!�9������8!����+��:�
�
•� �+��
����	����,+�!!�9�!�����!
����	�9+���
�	!���������!���;��4+�!��

���+����!�9+
+�+����
+�8��� �+!��

������9������	3�
�	��
���� ���
!���9+���
������������	���	���!
����	�9+��������	�����!���
�!�9�����
�����=����C��

�
•� �	��	���!��	�	3�����+����!��8���
��������	����9��	���!�������+����!�

�	��3���	����3!�9�!���	3��B,�����C��
�
•� �����+����!���##��+��#��������!!�	�+���,��8���������������	��	�

��� +�9� 3���	� ���3!� 9����� ��� '��3��;� � #!� �+��� 9���� ��!��� �,�	�
,���	��!+,� 9���	37� ���
��!� 9����� ��� �	!��	3� �+��� �+�� ���	
��
��8���,�����!������,���	����3���	����3�����!������+��	�B���##C��

�
•� 	���������3!�+������	���	��������� �+�����	
�;��+����	3�!�+������	�

��	����� �+���3+� �##7� !�
+� �!� 	����9	3� �+�� 3�,� �	� ���
���	���
�!��8�	��3�7� 
����	� ��!!�	!7� �	�� �!,�
�!� ��� +����+� 	�=�����!;�
���	!�9����	�,��
����������!!��+�!�C�

�
•� �+�� ��,�����	� ���
���� 	� 0�
������ ����� !+�9��� �� �����	3� 	� 	���

!��!��
��	;� �1�!���
+��8��	
��!�33�!�����+��� �� ��!��	�!�9����9����
	��������+�	��+���9�����9
���!�������������!��!����9�+�!��8
�!C��

�
•� �� ����
��	� 	� !
�	�!!� ���8�� ��� !����� +��� ���	� �
+�8��� �����

��;6����!����>;FG7����!�	��+����!���9������!7���!���	3�	��8�����7����
�B����9�������!�������C�

�
•� �+�� (H.%!� )���� �	�!� ��� �	=���*� ���� �+�� ����� I!�� ��� 1�!���
�!�

�!!�!!��	�� 9���� 
��,������� ������	�� ��� �+�� ���� !�!���� �	���� ��#�
�	�����!�����������	���+	3!;��4+���!!�!!��	�����9������
��9�!�	�9�
	������!���+��	����������+�������,��
�!!�9�!��!������	�	�9	C�

�
•� �+�����	
��9�!�
����	�����	���3�	3��	���+	
���3�8��	�	
����8�9����

�+��#��������!!�	�����!���=��!�C�
�
•� �+�� �	�	
��� !�����	� 9�!� �	���!����� ��� ��� �� �!�� ��� �+�� ���	
�@!�


�	�	�����,��8���	�7��!,�
�����38�	��+��	���	���,
������	�,���
�
!�
���� ����;� � 4+�� ���	!�������	� ,��'�
�� 9�!� ��	3� ��8���,��� �!� ��
���
�� ��!,�	!�� ��� �+�� ���	
�@!� ������� ��	�	3� �	8��	��	�� 9�+� �	�
�����	����
�	�	����+���,��8���	��������	���	��!��8
�!C�

�

3



�

���F��� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	����������

•� �+���33�!�� !!��!�
�	
��		3�+����+�9���:�!���	37����+��3+�?����9�
+�!� �	�� ��� �+�� ��9�!�� !���	3� ����!� 	� H�	��	C� +3+� ��8��!� ��� 4$7�
���+��3+��+����!,�	!������+!��!��9�!���
�3	!����!�3���7��	���+����+��
$����3+� +��� !���� ��� �+�� ��9�!�� ��8��!� ��� �����!� ���	3� ,+�!
���
�B��
!�C�

�
•� �+�����	
��9�!��9��������+��
+����	3�!��+���;�
�
������!��B,��!!����,,��
���	������+��9�����	�������	;�
�
�� !"#�$	��4+���
�
)�*� �+�� ���
���� ��� ?����9@!� ��!�� ���,��+�	!8�� #���� #!!�!!��	�� ���

	����C�
�
)�*� �+���
��	!��������	�������+�����	
�@!��9	��B,���	
��	����	���	�����

�+���##��	���������+������+����!@���!��,��
�
������	���!��;�
�

��2��  ��&&� ������3���,
���
&�4�����5������6���7����������
�
4+�����������������
�8�����,��!�	����	�������+��E�������	����	��	��+��
�	�	3!��	������+����	�!�����+�����������8��;��A��9�!�	������+����+��!��8��!�
	�������� ����� ,��
�� 	� �����	��8�� ����!� ���� +��� ���	� ����3+�� ���9���� ���
�	!�����+�����	������
��	!�
��������	
������	��+��������3���������,�������
�������;� � 4+�� ������������� 9�!� 	������� �+��� �+�� �FG� ��!,�	!��
)��,��!�	�	3������!����*7�
��,�����9�+���G������+��,��8��!�!��8��7�9�!���
8����3������!,�	!�������)��,
���������	����G���������
������+����*;��4+��>�G�
��	����� �!� �	3�3��� ��� �	������� 
��,����� ��8�������� 9�+� �+�� <6G�3������
��!���;�
�
A��9�!�	������+���!�����,��
�,��	!�+����,��8���	�>�G�����+��	�
����!��	��
6�G�!3	�
�	���;�
�
A�� 9�!� 	����� �+��� �+�� !��8��� ��,���� 9�!� ��
�!��� ����	�� +�9� �	3�3���
��,�����!�9����9�+��+�����	
���	��9+������8���+��������
�����	3�3��;��
4+��E�������	����	�+���
�����������+�������!�����!��8���	��,�	3����>��	��
�+����������
��������3��3���9+��+���!3	�
�	��������	
�!�+����

�������8���
�����	��9+�����
��	�9�!���=���������,��8����,������,��
�,��	��	���+���
�	3�3���	�;� � ������!� �B,��!!��� �+�� 8�9� �+��� !����� �,,������ ��� +�8��
	
���!��� �9	��!+,� �	�� ����� ����� 3������� 8������ 
��,����� ��� ,��8��!�
!��8��!;�
�
A	���!,�	!�����=��!��	!7��+���������������9�!���8!����+��:�
�
•� �+�����	
��+�����=��!��������+�������������,���!�����	����� 	�8�����

�
��	�,��	!���������8!���������
+���,�����	�C��
�
•� �+���+���%B�
��8��!���!�
!�	
�������+�!�������	3����#

�!!�?����9C�
�
•� �+��#������	��?��!	3�0��
���������!,�	!��+���	
���!�����������6�G�

	����>�����<GC�

4



�

��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	���������� ���>���

�
•� �+��!��8���	
����������!�����9+��9!+������,���
,���:�><G�,����	�	�7�

��G��3�	
��������,�����7�6G�	���!�����C�
�
•� �+��!�,,����38�	� ���!������B,���	
	3�
+�	3���	���+��,��
�,��	!����

�+�� �+��� %B�
��8�� �	�� +!� ������ ����� 9���� !���� 8���� +3+� 	�

��,��!�	� 9�+� ��+��� ��3�	!���	!;� � 4+�� !
���� ���� 
+�	3��
��	�3���	�7� 9+
+� 	� !���� ����!� +��� !��	� �� ��9� ��!�7� 9�!� 	�9�
�������� 	� �	�� 9�+� �+�� ,���
� !�
���� �	�� �+�� ���	
�� 9�!� ����	3� ���
+�9�����,��8������+��C�

�
•� �+�� 
�	!!��	�� ��8��� ��� �,��8���	�� 9�!� 3���7� �!� 9�!� �,��8���	��

���	3���,��������
+�	3�C�
�
•� �+��	�B��!�����!��8���9����������,��
����9���!��+���	���������C�
�
•� �+��E������
��������3��&���,�+�������3+����3��+���
����	��+���!C�
�
•� �+������������<�+������	����!����!���	��3����+�����	����	��3+�;��A	�

���>�!����!���	�+������	��
+�8����	���+!�9�!�	�9���	3�������	C�
�
•� �+�� ,��	�9�!� �����8�� ���9���� �	� �	� �,�����	��� �!�9���� �!� !�����3
�

��8��;�
�
4+���������������9�!�	��������+�����
+����,������0��
����+�����
�8���
�� ��,���� 	�
��	3�3���	���� ���� ��!���!�9+
+�9��������
�	!�����������+���
�+��%=������4�!�����E������
��������3��&���,!;��4+���������
��	!��	�9+
+�

�	!������	�9�!����	3�,��
��9���:�
�
•� 
�	�	������ �,��8��,�������	
��	�
+�	3����	�3���	���	��!�,,����

���!������+���3+�
+�	3�C�
�
•� 
�	�	���� ��8���,��	�� ��� !�	��� �	�� ������ ��	�3��!� �	�� ���� !�����

3�	������C�
�
•� �
��	!� ��� 	
���!�� �9���	�!!� ��� 9+��� +�,,�	��� 	� !����@!� �9	�

��,�����	�C�
�
•� 9���� �	� �+�� �9�� 	�
����!� �+��� +��� 3�	�� ��9	:� !���	3� 	�8�����

��'�
�8�!� ���� �+�� ����� �	�� ���� !���� !����� 	��� �����9	3� �+���3+� �+��
��8���,��	���+�����	�3��!�+����3�����9�+��+��;�

�
E+�!�� �9�� �+��!� ��� ��!,�	��	�!� !��� �+���?����9� ����	!������� �+��� �� 9�!�

�������� ��� ��	3� �	� �=���� �,,����	��!7� �3�	!�� !���� ��� �+�� =��!��	!�
�!����	��+��!��8����+����!,�	!�!�	�
������+����+��,��
�,��	!�8���������+��
!�
��� ��	���� ��� !����;� � #� !���3���,� ��� �+�� ���,������ %=������ &���,� 9�!�
��	3��������������������+!�!!����	����+����=�����!�!!��!������3�	������;�
�
4+����������������+�	����4+��E������
�����	����	��	�����
��!������+���
	,��;��
�

5



�

������� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������	����������

�� !"#�$	��4+����+��!�����!��8�����!���!����	������	���+��,��,�!����
��	!�
�	���!��;�
�
)"���:��4+������	37�+�8	3�
����	
������F;6��,�7�
��!�������;�6�,�*;�
�
�
�
�
�
)�3	��*��.I"�AHH.1��#1(� %1�#HHA."�
�+����	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

6



 

 
 
REPORT FOR: 
 

PERFORMANCE AND 
FINANCE SCRUTINY 
SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

25 March 2010 

Subject: 
 

Scrutiny annual report 2009/10 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director, 
Partnership, Development and 
Performance 

Scrutiny Lead 
Member area: 

All 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A:  Draft annual report – 
Performance and Finance section 
 
Appendix B:  Performance and 
Finance Committee – protocol for 
agenda planning and operation 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out details of the sub committee’s activity in 2009/10 for 
inclusion in the Scrutiny Annual Report, for consideration of the sub-
committee.  Members are also invited to evaluate the effectiveness of the sub 
committee since its inception.   
 
Recommendations:   
1. That the sub committee agree its section of the annual report. 
2. That the sub committee’s report on its activities be included in the report to 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 13 April 2010. 
 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 7 to 28 

7



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Background 
Appendix A of this report outlines the activities of the Performance and 
Finance scrutiny sub committee in 2009/10, for Members’ consideration.  It is 
intended that this report be included in the scrutiny annual report for 2009/10, 
which is prepared in accordance with article 6.03 (d) of the Council’s 
constitution. 
 
Appendix B of this report is the sub committee’s protocol for agenda planning 
and operation.  The sub committee was introduced in July 2007, when the 
decision was taken to move away from a system of a main committee and 
thematic sub-committees.  It was envisaged that the sub committee act as “a 
key driver of the scrutiny function’s work programme and the body responsible 
for monitoring the performance of the council and partners in relation to their 
stated priorities.”1  Given that the current administration is drawing to a close, 
Members are also invited to evaluate the effectiveness of the committee in 
fulfilling its functions.  Members may wish to draw any conclusions reached to 
the attention of future scrutiny Members through the annual report.   
 
Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications associated with this report.   
 
Performance Issues 
This report deals with the performance of the sub committee in 2009/10 
throughout.   
 
Environmental Impact 
There are no implications.   
 
Risk Management Implications 
Not applicable to this report. 
 
Corporate Priorities 
The work of the sub committee cuts across all of the council’s corporate 
priorities.   
• Deliver cleaner and safer streets 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
• Build stronger communities 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report.   
 
 

                                            
1 O&S, Reconfiguring Scrutiny, 10 July 2007.  Agreed by Council on 12 July 2007. 

8



Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer, 020 8420 9203, 
heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
Background Papers:   
 
Reconfiguring scrutiny, O&S, 10 July 2007 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/Published/C00000276/M00003751/AI000383
50/$Reconfiguration.docA.ps.pdf  
 
Protocol for Agenda Planning and Operation, agreed at P&F 29 October 2008 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=817&MId=4189&
Ver=4&J=7   
 

9



 

APPENDIX A 
 
SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 
Report from Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 
2009/10 has seen the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub Committee 
consolidate its experience as the engine room for scrutiny, undertaking 
detailed performance investigation and escalating matters for further 
examination by O&S.   
 
The system of chairman’s briefings has continued to drive the agenda setting 
process for the committee.  Considerations made by the chairman and vice-
chairman at these meetings, where scorecards are interrogated, are reported 
to the sub committee to ensure transparency.  Where necessary, on an 
exception basis, further examination has taken place in the committee setting.  
Where the committee has felt that further in-depth scrutiny is warranted, 
matters have been escalated to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
This year the committee has considered a range of items including progress 
on achieving healthy schools status, integrated budget and service planning, 
revenue and capital monitoring, preparations for and outcomes of the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment, the staff survey and the Strategy for 
People.2    
 
We escalated the issue of the housing revenue account negative subsidy to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and a challenge panel was undertaken.  
The results of the panel formed part of the council’s response to the 
Department for Communities and Local Government's (CLG) review of council 
housing finance and rents policy. 
 
A particular area of interest has been the efforts of the chief executive to 
change the culture of the organisation.  We have paid particular attention to 
matters such as SAP utilisation by managers and the committee supports 
drives to raise compliance in areas such as budget monitoring.  Such 
improvements will ensure that the organisation develops a stronger and more 
accurate understanding of its financial standing.  Other related areas of focus 
have included workforce sickness and absence, making the most of 
Comprehensive Area Assessment and the council’s Better Deal for Residents 
programme. 
 
Our focus on housing has continued, particularly with regard to the recent 
pressures in the area of housing responsive repairs.  We considered 
escalating the matter to O&S for detailed investigation, but the committee 
subsequently felt that a larger piece of work on the Kier contract should be 
considered.  We recommend that our successors give the Kier contract 
serious consideration because of the contract’s impact on a wide range of 
services delivered to our residents.   
 
We have also monitored progress on past reviews including delivering a 
strengthened voluntary sector, the review of obesity and right to manage. 
 
                                            
2 At the time of writing this item is scheduled for consideration on 25 March 2010.   

10



Reflecting back, looking forward 
Harrow scrutiny function remains one of the few local authorities in the 
country that uses performance information to inform decisions about work 
programming.  Many restrict interrogation of performance information to 
scrutiny of scorecards within the committee setting rather than integrating it 
into the planning of scrutiny activity.  This is a key strength which must be 
maintained and strengthened going forward.     
 
For the future we feel that there is potential to further improve our ways of 
working, in particular by engaging lead members to a greater extent in the 
identification of areas for monitoring and investigation, thereby forging links 
between consideration of policy and performance.  There is also the potential 
to extend financial scrutiny and the consideration of financial matters 
alongside service performance. 
 
We are pleased that the committee is growing in confidence in fulfilling its role 
and we hope that by doing so we can continue to support the council in 
strengthening its performance in delivering services to residents and meeting 
local priorities. 
 
 

   
Councillor Mark Versallion 
Chairman, Performance and 

Finance 
Scrutiny Sub Committee 

 

Councillor Brian Gate 
Vice-Chairman, Performance and 

Finance 
Scrutiny Sub Committee 

 
 
 
Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 
Committee meetings 4 
Attendance by Leader None 
Attendance by Portfolio Holders Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane, 

Portfolio Holder for Adults and 
Housing (1) 
 
Councillor Paul Osborn, Portfolio 
Holder for Performance, 
Communication and Corporate 
Services (1) 

Attendance by Chief Executive None 
Review meetings 1 (HRA challenge panel) 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 
PROTOCOL FOR AGENDA PLANNING AND OPERATION 

OCTOBER 2008 – Version 7.1 

Aims of the sub-committee 

The sub-committee has three central aims, as follows: 

To promote public discussion and awareness of council performance and 
improvement in strategic terms, and, where appropriate, to make relevant 
recommendations

To monitor council performance and the council’s finances on a by exception basis, 
identified by analysis of scorecard and Improvement Board data, and where more 
in-depth study of an issue is required to escalate the matter to Overview and 
Scrutiny

To examine and discuss high-level strategic performance and finance issues, and in 
particular at cross-cutting and thematic matters impacting on performance and on 
the potential for improvement 

The agenda planning process outlined below is intended to help deliver those aims in the 
most value for money manner possible.

1

13



Contents

1. Principles of agenda planning 
2. Role of Performance and Finance
3. Role of Chairman 
4. Input from Officers, Improvement Boards, and the Executive: Developing the 

Agenda
5. Input from Members: Scrutiny Policy and Performance Leads 
6. Reporting “by exception” 
7. Committee Meetings
8. Reference to O&S and Further Work 
9. Completion

1 PRINCIPLES OF AGENDA PLANNING 

1.1 The agenda planning process exists: 

! Firstly, to ensure that members receive a wide spread of baseline information 
to enable them to plan the committee work programme effectively. 

! Secondly, to better effect dialogue between service officers, scrutiny officers 
and scrutiny members when the agenda is being put together 

! Thirdly, to ensure that consideration of issues at committee represents a 
culmination of a period of off-line study of a topic, rather than a stand-alone 
information gathering exercise for scrutiny members, of limited value and 
impact both to members and officers.

! Fourthly, to ensure that scrutiny committees, by planning their agendas and 
work programmes more robustly, are able to demonstrate a value for money 
service, which is effective and responsive to the needs and concerns of local 
people.

1.2 Performance and Finance will operate with these key principles in mind. Agenda 
planning will also have to take especial account of the corporate performance 
management position. More information on this can be found in section 4.

2 ROLE OF PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 

2.1 The Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee (hereafter P&F) exists to 
hold the executive to account for performance against stated targets and to assist 
the authority in its service improvement aims. 

2.2 The terms of reference, agreed by Overview and Scrutiny at their meeting on 10 
July 2007, identifies the terms of reference of P&F as follows: 

! To consider / monitor, on an exception basis, the financial and service 
performance of the organisation. 

! To consider / monitor the performance of the Local Area Agreement (LAA) 

2

14



! To undertake specific investigation of identified “hot spots” through Q&A, 
reports or challenge panels – subject to endorsement by Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

! To refer “hot spots” to O&S for more detailed investigation where necessary. 
! To consider such urgent items as are necessary – ad hoc, CcfA, area 

scrutiny.

2.3 The Committee will, following agreement of the Overview and Scrutiny, examine the 
following issues:

! Performance and finance information from all areas of the council, as 
reported to the SPR scorecard – to include all Corporate Director scorecards, 
and group and service scorecards, as appropriate. 

! Performance information from the NHS. 
! Performance information from the Metropolitan Police.
! Performance information from schools (where appropriate – see below). 
! HSP scorecards.
! Other performance information relating to services provided to Harrow 

residents.

2.4 P&F will, by looking at this information, support the policy work of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and of the review groups that established by that body.

2.5 It will consider performance and finance-related issues on a “by exception” basis 
only. Only where a performance or finance issue has been identified as a cause for 
concern will P&F examine an issue. However, it is not a Star Chamber or 
probationary body. The emphasis in all discussions will be for members and officers 
to work collectively to establish how performance in a given area can improve, 
within existing resource, financial and staff capacity. 

2.6 Finance issues will be considered alongside performance information, to provide
context to the Committee. Occasionally it will be necessary to consider finance
information outside this context – for example, to support the annual consideration 
of the council’s budget. In-year monitoring of the budget will also be carried out. 

2.7 Performance and Finance will not deliver its own review-based work programme, 
although at the request of Overview and Scrutiny Committee it can carry out light 
touch reviews and challenge panels which focus exclusively on performance issues. 
Although it will carry out its own work at committee, any matters requiring more in-
depth (or ongoing discussion) will, as a matter of course, be referred to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which will make a decision on whether to 
proceed based on a recommendation from P&F.

3 ROLE OF CHAIRMAN

3.1 The Chairman, with the Vice-Chairman, is responsible for setting the agenda for 
each meeting. Both members will do so with reference to the Scrutiny Principles,
and to the overriding principle that work undertaken must be “value for money”. 

3.2 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will hold a meeting once a month with the 
Scrutiny Officer, which the Director of Finance, and an officer from the Corporate 
Performance Improvement Team, will be invited to attend. The aim of these 

3

15



meetings will be to establish which items should be included on the agenda for the 
subsequent committee meeting, and to monitor performance on a wide range of 
issues affecting Harrow’s residents. More on these meetings can be found in 
sections 4 and 5.

3.3 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will liase closely with other members of the 
committee. In particular, it is important to note that both members’ roles will require 
an ongoing, high level of commitment, necessitated by the frequent and detailed 
consideration of performance issues outside of the ordinary context of committee 
meetings.

4 INPUT FROM OFFICERS, IMPROVEMENT BOARDS AND THE CORPORATE 
ROLE: DEVELOPING AGENDA PROPOSALS

4.1 Success for P&F will depend on effective agenda planning. This, in turn, depends 
upon an acute understanding of the work that the executive is carrying out to 
improve performance. The Committee has to ensure that its work focuses in on 
these areas, and areas in general where it can have a meaningful and positive
impact. Members have previously agreed that the Committee should focus upon: 

! Identified financial risk areas 
! Performance of priority services 
! Performance “failures”
! Priority risks
! “in-year” issues, as identified by Cabinet 
! Issues arising from area-based scrutiny or the CCfA.

4.2 To be able to look at these areas effectively, members must have access to officers 
involved in making judgments on performance at a corporate level. For example, 
examining financial risk relies on a consideration of the Director of Finance’s 
identification of those services constituting a financial risk to the authority at a given 
time. For the municipal year 2007/08 this includes social care expenditure, delivery 
of the council’s savings plan and the impact of the Primary Care Trust turnaround 
plan on council finances.

4.3 Input from a number of corporate, and officer, groups will be important, in order to 
put the information in context.

4.4 High Performing Harrow – Scrutiny has a regular item on the monthly High 
Performing Harrow agenda. HPH is an officer-level group which discusses strategic 
issues relating to performance monitoring and management in the council. HPH 
may raise issues which they may consider members should examine. Likewise, the 
Performance and Finance Committee would be expected to keep HPH informed of 
its activities, so that officers engaged in performance work in service departments 
are aware of the P&F work programme.

4.5 Improvement Boards – these are bodies established by both officers and executive
members to examine work being carried out to improve performance in a given 
area. They examine performance and identify opportunities for change and 
improvement. The work of the Improvement Boards, and that of P&F, will need to 
be closely aligned, to make sure that P&F’s work has maximum impact, and to 
ensure that the risk of duplication is minimised – with the important caveats below. 

4

16



It may be that P&F can pick up more detail of work carried out by Improvement 
Boards, or carry out some background work in advance of Improvement Boards, to 
submit to those boards for their consideration. In any event, liaison between officers 
and members will be important. At the same time, outcomes from Improvement 
Boards will, as a matter of course, be considered by Overview and Scrutiny. P&F 
will advise Overview and Scrutiny on any detail pertaining to Improvement Board 
work that might indicate that scrutiny work on a given subject ought to be carried 
out.

Inevitably P&F will, therefore, be carrying out investigate work into similar issues to 
the Improvement Boards. Duplication in terms of subject matter can be expected, 
but not duplication in terms of approach and outcomes. P&F will also integrate 
democratic accountability into the Improvement Board framework by providing 
backbench members the opportunity to discuss key performance issues in a public 
setting. Members’ different approaches, and the cross-cutting nature of P&F itself, 
will naturally lend themselves to a different approach and correspondingly different,
but complementary, outcomes to those of the Improvement Boards. Naturally, 
should members consider that the input of P&F in a particular issue being 
considered by Improvement Boards will constitute duplication, they will proceed
accordingly, in consultation with officers from the Scrutiny Unit and Corporate 
Performance, and the Director of Finance.

4.6 Corporate Improvement Programme – P&F will have to consider the work being 
carried out under the Corporate Improvement Programme. The CIP is linked to the 
corporate priorities, and sets out a suite of improvement priorities, each of which is 
backed up by one of a series of “flagship actions”. Progress on meeting the 
objectives set by these actions could be something to observe, although detailed
monitoring will be carried out at a corporate level. Both O&S and P&F will also 
undertake specific pieces of work to support delivery of the corporate improvement 
programme.

4.7 Activities being carried out under the aegis of these three bodies and plans – as 
well as other information, where relevant – will be reported to the Chairman and
Vice-Chairman as appropriate. It is anticipated that P&F will also be able to assist in 
the scrutiny of the Year Ahead Statement and Corporate Plan. There is more on 
this below.

5 INPUT FROM MEMBERS: SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE AND POLICY LEADS 

5.1 The scrutiny leads – the performance leads in particular – play an important role in 
the development of the work programme and committee meeting agendas. 

5.2 It has been agreed by O&S that the scrutiny leads will act to provide a gateway into 
the scrutiny function both for officers and for members of the public. As such it is 
appropriate that they play a central role in the agenda development process for 
P&F.

5.3 The points below relating to the Chairman’s Meetings, and the meetings of the sub-
committee themselves, reflect this necessary involvement, but this section sets out 
some general principles as well as some more specific requirements.

5

17



5.4 Performance leads, and support for the work of the committee – the performance 
leads will have a number of opportunities both to impact upon and support the work 
of the committee. When a performance matter comes to the attention of a lead, 
he/she will, with the agreement of the policy lead, be able to: 

! request that the issue in question be considered in detail at their next 
quarterly briefing with the policy lead 

! ask that the issue be considered at the next P&F, in consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman and assuming that the issue meets the “by 
exception” criteria (the informal escalation process)

! raise the issue at the next P&F as an element of the “Performance Issues” 
item (the formal escalation process) 

! conduct their own informal investigation into the issue and present any 
findings to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman at their monthly meeting, with 
any findings and comments being directed immediately to the officers 
involved. This would be an informal process for looking at certain issues 
where escalation might not be appropriate, and would allow certain matters 
thought important by members to be investigated even when the “by 
exception” criteria are not met. Scrutiny Officers would not be able to provide 
support for such investigations.

5.5 Providing information to the performance leads – to carry out any of the above will 
require performance leads to have an understanding of performance within the 
terms of reference for which they are responsible. This will be provided by the 
following means – some of which are laid out elsewhere in this protocol. 

! Performance information from monthly meetings relating to a particular
subject area will be made available in “digest” form for the leads’ quarterly 
meetings.

! Action sheets from the monthly meetings to be circulated to all performance 
leads as a matter of course. 

! Performance leads to have relevant scorecards circulated to them 
electronically when they become available, in advance of the relevant monthly 
meeting.

6 CHAIRMAN’S BRIEFINGS AND CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

6.1 On a monthly basis, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the committee will meet the 
Scrutiny Officer and officers from Corporate Performance and Corporate Finance, 
should it be necessary for those officers to attend. The purpose of this meeting will 
be twofold: 

! To monitor and consider performance/finance information in 2.3, above, 
when it is available. 

! To monitor information which has been identified by P&F as required 
ongoing scrutiny. 

! To monitor and consider broader cultural issues relating to performance 
management, with a view to escalating issues to committee when necessary.

! When appropriate, to plan the agenda for the next committee meeting 

These meetings will not be committee meetings. Substantive matters will be 
discussed but, constitutionally, no decisions can be made. They will be an 

6

18



information-gathering forum only, to support the work of P&F being carried out at 
committee itself.

6.2 In advance of the meeting, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be sent copies of all 
the relevant, new performance and finance information made available in the 
previous month, as well as copies of the agreed actions from the previous month’s 
meeting (this information will also be copied, for information, to all scrutiny 
performance leads). The Scrutiny Officer will also provide a short precis, with some 
context on the performance information provided, comparing it to previous 
scorecards and identifying any potential issues. Information will also be made 
available to the performance leads as appropriate. It may be that this information can 
be made electronically on the scrutiny internet site, and this option is being pursued. 

6.3 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will also be provided with key information from the 
most recent Improvement Boards, on a quarterly basis, including any other relevant 
performance information (including recommendations on Improvement Boards made 
at, and approved by, Cabinet). This will help to identify future plans for improvement 
as part of the “by exception” criteria.

6.4 It is expected that in time a broad suite of performance information, much of it high-
level, will be available on a monthly basis. For the moment, however, this will not be 
occurring. As such, the monthly meetings themselves will not, at the outset, be able 
to consider real-time performance information, as had originally been hoped. Instead, 
they will look at comparative information from other boroughs (and best practice
information relating to performance management and will also examine systemic 
issues relating to the development of a performance management “culture” in Harrow 
– for example, issues relating to data quality, improvement, service plans, resourcing, 
and so on.

6.5 Quarterly budget monitoring information will also form a part of the evidence base for 
this Chairman’s Report.

6.6 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will discuss this information at the meeting. They 
will consider the data provided and decide whether certain matters should be referred 
to P&F for their consideration. It will also extract useful information to assist O&S’s 
ongoing work on policy development issues. It will conduct these activities on a “by 
exception” basis. This will be explained in detail in section 6.

6.7 Attendance at chairman’s briefing – as explained above, the briefing will be attended 
by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, the scrutiny officer and an officer from corporate 
performance and corporate finance (should there be a need for the latter two to 
attend – for example to discuss a particular issue). Service officers will not normally 
be invited or expected to attend – the venue for discussions with service officers 
should be P&F committee itself, although there may be exceptions to this. Scrutiny 
performance leads might choose to attend, with prior agreement, to discuss any 
matter due to be discussed on which they had a particular interest.

6.8 The action sheets will be made available on the internet and intranet, and the dates 
and times of the meetings will appear on the scrutiny internet/intranet site as well.
However, the briefings not being formal meetings of a council body, they will not be 
listed on the council calendar. Notwithstanding this, any member of the public 
expressing an interest in attending should be able to sit in and observe. However, in 

7

19



the normal course of events, public concerns would be directed through the scrutiny 
leads as appropriate.

6.9 Actions following the meeting  - After the meeting, an action sheet will be drawn up, 
identifying each issue discussed and the proposed action to be taken as a result – 
whether to look at an issue more closely, continue monitoring normally or refer a 
matter to P&F. If deciding to look at an issue more closely, the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman can request additional performance information – perhaps including 
specific service scorecards, longer-term historical data, or evidence from any 
relevant BV reviews or Improvement Boards – for the next meeting. 

6.10 Detailed minutes of the meeting will not be taken. It will be an informal briefing
session and will not under any circumstances purport to take the place of the 
Performance and Finance Committee. As a rule of thumb it will probably not last 
longer than an hour and a half and will not have a formal agenda.

6.11 The action sheet will be sent to all scrutiny performance leads in advance of the next 
meeting along with the next meeting’s data pack, to inform members of ongoing 
issues. It will also provide performance leads with the opportunity to raise any 
performance-related issues of which they are aware, which can then be placed onto 
the agenda of the next meeting. 

6.12 Support for work at Overview and Scrutiny – on occasion the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will, as agreed, consider issues relating to performance. This will 
generally be when a regular report will cut across policy and performance issues and 
will be the exception rather than the norm and would apply in the circumstances 
below:

! The annual Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy report. 
! The Annual Health Check from the NHS 

That these two items relate to the two issues where scrutiny has (or shortly will 
have) a statutory responsibility to scrutinise a partner is not directly related to this 
special treatment.

6.13 Under these circumstances, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman would, at the 
relevant monthly meeting, look in particular detail – along with the performance lead 
for the relevant issue – at the subject under discussion. An informal briefing based 
on these discussions would then be provided to assist Overview and Scrutiny at 
committee.

6.14 More broadly, findings at Performance and Finance could well support ongoing 
discussion of any item being considered at Overview and Scrutiny through the 
ordinary process of references between committees, as laid out in the council’s 
Constitution. In particular, P&F will be able to provide assistance in the 
consideration of the Year Ahead Statement and Corporate Plan  Relevant 
performance information can be passed in précis form to Overview and Scrutiny as 
an element in a reference report to provide the baseline evidence for a policy-based 
discussion at the parent committee. If the committee dates do not align to permit 
this process to occur formally, an informal meeting between members (probably at 
the briefing or agenda planning stage) would easily allow the evidence to be 
shared.

8

20



The reference report process is explained later.

6.15 Support for the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in respect of 
education matters – education policy matters are being considered by Overview
and Scrutiny, and education performance matters by Performance and Finance, the 
same as other topics. However, the situation is made somewhat more complex by 
the presence of the education co-optees. 

6.16 Education co-optees provide an important, statutory, accountability to local authority 
scrutiny of education services. Representing the interests of schools, they also 
provide an additional and useful source of expert opinions.

6.17 The education co-optees will sit on Overview and Scrutiny but not on Performance 
and Finance. This means that in the first instance education performance issues will 
be considered without the co-optees being present.

6.18 However, the reference report to O&S (see below) will, when it considers education
items, provide a detailed summary of discussions upon which the education co-
optees will have an opportunity to comment. Discussions can also be reopened on 
the topic in question to consider the wider implications insofar as they affect policy 
considerations. It may under certain circumstances – for example, when information
has recently become available – be appropriate for O&S to consider performance 
information of this kind before P&F. However, if this does happen it would be as 
general background information to support a discussion on policy issues.

6.19 The process will be given further transparency by the co-optees being provided with 
key performance information from P&F as and when it is considered at the monthly 
Chairman’s meetings.

6.20 Chairman’s Report – at every meeting of P&F the Chairman will table a report, 
summarising his and the Vice-Chairman’s discussions at their monthly meetings. 
This report will contain: 

! combined action sheet information, advising the committee of all issues 
considered by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman at their meetings since the 
previous P&F.

! Proposed recommendations for dealing with ongoing performance issues,
which will require the committee’s ratification.

6.12 This will ensure that all formal decisions remain with the Performance and Finance 
Committee, as the formally constituted body, and that all matters discussed in the 
Chairman’s Briefings are reported fully to the Committee, thus maintaining a high 
level of openness and transparency. This will be discussed in more detail below.

7 REPORTING “BY EXCEPTION” 

7.1 All reporting to committee will be “by exception”. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman
will between them make a decision, at the monthly Chairman’s Meeting, as to 
whether a particular issue meets a strict set of “by exception” criteria. 

9

21



7.2 These criteria exist to ensure that committee only considers issues that are of a 
high priority, and those issues on which the scrutiny function has the opportunity to 
add most value. They also aim to ensure that duplication will be limited between the 
role of Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee, and any executive-side 
bodies which also act to improve performance. 

7.3 There are two sets of linked criteria – one for performance issues and one for 
finance issues.

7.4 The performance criteria are as follows. 

Performance and Finance Committee should look at an issue relating to poor 
performance only: 

! when it relates to a priority for the council (identified through the Corporate 
Priorities or through statutory requirements), and 

! when performance has been exceptional (either high or low) for a sustained 
period, and 

! where costs appears to be high, possibly demonstrating poor value for 
money, and 

! when it relates to an issue within the council’s control, and 
! where it appears that it is possible, within existing resources, to improve 

performance, and 
! it is unclear whether a plan has been put in place to improve performance, or 

the plan is failing, and
! where there is significant risk attached to poor performance. 

OR

! when poor performance relates to a significant area of concern for local
people, as identified by lead members or directly by local people through the 
CCA regime.

OR

! when Overview and Scrutiny Committee have requested that Performance 
and Finance examine an issue.

7.5 The finance criteria are as follows: 

Performance and Finance Committee should look at an issue relating to finance 
issues only:

! where the quarterly monitoring report shows that finances have been at “red” 
for two successive quarters, and 

! where there is a significant over (or under) spend (actual or projected), and 
! where there is no plan to meet financial targets by the end of the next 

quarter, or the end of the financial year (or where a plan exists but seems to 
the Chairman/Vice-Chairman to be extremely challenging), and 

! where the financial situation is likely to have an impact upon the delivery of 
services to local people, and 

10

22



! where the financial situation is likely to have an impact upon performance 
indicators (either in the National Indicator Set or internally).

7.6 When an issue meets one of these three broad sets of criteria, it will ordinarily be 
considered at the next available P&F meeting, with the Chairman’s Report (see 7.2 
below) making clear which criteria have been used.

8 COMMITTEE MEETINGS

8.1 Meetings of Performance and Finance Committee will be held every quarter 

8.2 Chairman’s Report  - The first item on the agenda will be the Chairman’s Report. It 
will identify the provenance of all items on the agenda, as well as issues considered 
for inclusion on the agenda, but where the Chairman considers that inclusion is not 
justified.

8.3 Members will make a decision whether to endorse the Chairman’s decisions for the 
agenda. In practice, this should be a formality, as members of the committee would
have been informed of the results of the Chairman’s Briefings on a regular basis, and 
would have had an opportunity to comment on the agenda in advance.

8.4 The Chairman’s Report will also contain a recommendation that the Chairman
provide, as part of the next report of the scrutiny leads to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, a summary setting out key Harrow-wide performance issues, which will 
be a synthesis of evidence from the Chairman’s Report and evidence received at 
Performance and Finance Committee at the meeting in question. This will not be a 
duplicate minute of the meeting. 

8.5 Performance Issues – the second item on the agenda will be a verbal item. It will 
provide an opportunity for scrutiny performance leads to raise, formally, any 
performance-related issues which have come to their attention. Performance and 
Finance Committee would then decide what course of action they wished to take to 
resolve such situations. The most likely solution would be for monitoring at the 
Chairman’s Meeting, with the potential for the issue in question to be escalated back 
to the sub-committee as a formal agenda item at the next meeting if the matter is not 
resolved.

8.6 The rest of the agenda will be given over to substantive discussion of performance 
and finance issues. The Committee will consider: 

! Background to the scorecard and relevant indicators 
! Reasons for poor performance 
! Implications of continued poor performance 
! Steps being put in place to improve performance 
! Other bodies carrying out work to monitor performance
! Further steps necessary to monitor performance and deliver improvements. 

8.7 In relation to finance issues, members will also consider:

! impact on financial risk areas 
! impact on annual budget 
! impact on other priority services 

11

23



8.8 Standing Report, Finance – in addition to “by exception” reporting for finance, a 
regular quarterly report will be produced to examine “in-year” issues and the 
preparation of the budget settlement for the next financial year. This will be built on 
the provision of the quarterly finance monitoring report, which will have been 
provided to the relevant Chairman’s Meeting beforehand.

The standing report will focus on the following issues in the relevant quarter: 

Quarter 1: an evaluation of the provisional settlement for the next financial year. 
Quarter 2: a preliminary assessment of the next financial year’s budget proposals.
Quarter 3: general effect of year’s performance to date on financial position; 
consequent consideration of next year’s financial priorities.
Quarter 4: consideration of in-year revisions to budget and issues in light of the 
previous year’s draft financial statements.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will use the summary report to identify some key 
recommendations for improvements, if any should be required. 

The summary report will be presented to committee as a joint scrutiny/finance 
report, supplemented by both key comparative information and by the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman’s recommendations, which will be debated at Sub-Committee. It 
will provide an overview of the budget and of finance issues and will be short-term 
in nature. 

8.9 Portfolio holder attendance and service officer attendance – it may be useful for the 
committee to speak to the portfolio holder or to specific officers about a certain
performance issue. However, officers and portfolio holders will not be invited to 
attend for general discussions or Q&As on undefined issues.

8.10 Actions taken as a result of committee consideration – the committee may take one 
(or a combination of) a number of options which are outlined on the committee 
report itself. These are:

! Make comments and recommendations as appropriate, and decide to 
escalate the issue to Overview and Scrutiny, for that committee to 
commission work on the subject. 

! Request that the matter be reported to committee at the next meeting for the 
purpose of further information being provided, subject to the principles set 
out in 7.9 below. 

! Make comments and recommendations as appropriate, and resolve to 
consider the item again only insofar as it meets the “by exception” criteria in 
the future. 

! As above, but request that performance information on this issue be – where 
possible – be made available monthly to permit the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman to monitor this matter closely.

8.11 Repeat reports – occasionally it may be necessary for an issue to return to the next 
meeting of P&F. This will occur when: 

! the discussion led to a wider performance or finance-based query on a 
particular issue that could not be answered at the time, but is sufficiently 

12

24



significant that it would not be appropriate for it to be dealt with in the form of 
a written response. 

! it would be clearly valuable to receive evidence from a partner or another 
stakeholder on a given issue. 

! consideration of the item is more likely than not to result in a 
recommendation to O&S that a piece of work be commissioned on a given 
topic.

A repeat report will not be requested when: 
! it has not been made clear how the additional report will add value to 

performance improvement in the service in question. 
! the repeat report will only be providing an update on ongoing performance.
! the repeat report will deal with an issue or issues which could adequately be 

dealt with in the form of an information report. 
! the consideration at committee is as the result of a request for a repeat 

report at a previous meeting. 

As such only one repeat report will be taken, at the next available committee
meeting. After this time it is impossible to justify further reports on an issue. If it is 
important enough to justify a further call on scrutiny’s time then this is a prima facie 
justification for review work to be carried out (through an escalation). If not then it 
does not need to be considered further.

8.12 Reference report – the first substantive item on the agenda, the chairman’s report, 
will incorporate a resolution to provide a summary of items discussed, and decisions 
made, to the next meeting of Overview and Scrutiny.  This will be considered in more 
detail in the next section. 

9 REFERENCE TO O&S AND FUTURE WORK 

9.1 Reference to Overview and Scrutiny – the minutes of every meeting of Performance 
and Finance will be reported to Overview and Scrutiny as a matter of course.

9.2 Additionally, the Chairman’s Report will make provision for additional information to 
be made available to the next convenient meeting of O&S which will summarise 
Harrow-wide performance issues as considered at any relevant Chairman’s Meetings 
as well as providing background on issues discussed at committee where 
appropriate.

9.3 Where Performance and Finance considers it necessary that more detailed work be 
carried out (for example, a challenge panel or light touch review) reference will be 
made to Overview and Scrutiny in the standard way (ie, as set out in the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules).

9.4 Performance and Finance may also recommend, in this fashion, that a matter be 
referred to Cabinet for their consideration.

9.5 This ensures that Overview and Scrutiny is able to integrate its work with the 
valuable evidence being gathered by Performance and Finance – it also maintains 
Overview and Scrutiny’s agreed role as the commissioning body for all scrutiny work 
being carried out outside of committee.

13

25



10 COMPLETION 

10.1 Performance and Finance will not request, at committee, to receive a report on an 
issue at the next committee to “follow up”, or further monitor. This ongoing monitoring
is being carried out at the Chairman’s Briefing, to ensure that time at committee is 
spent considering only matters which have been recently established as 
demonstrating poor performance – the principle of “exception” monitoring.

10.2 As a result, there will be no regular items, other than those identified above. This 
includes items on statutory matters such as health and the police, which will only be 
considered as necessary. However, at the Chairman’s Briefings, such issues will be 
considered regularly, and where appropriate information can be provided to the 
relevant policy and performance leads to support other scrutiny work.

14

26



1
5

8 
E

S
C

A
L

A
T

IO
N

D
IA

G
R

A
M

 S
H

O
W

IN
G

 A
G

E
N

D
A

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

 F
O

R
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
 -

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
Le

ad
s 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
s 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 S

P
R

) 

C
a

b
in

et

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 
S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 S
U

B
-C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

S
u

b
se

q
u

en
t 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
B

o
ar

d
s 

C
ab

in
et

S
cr

u
ti

n
y 

C
h

al
le

n
g

e 
P

an
el

 / 
L

ig
h

t 
T

o
u

ch
 R

ev
ie

w

D
ir

ec
t 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

to
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

C
h

ai
rm

an
’s

 m
ee

ti
n

g
 

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

ch
ai

rm
an

’s
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 m

ee
ti

n
g

s 

M
on

th
ly

 in
fo

, w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
; 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
fo

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 q
tr

 

27



1
6

D
IA

G
R

A
M

 S
H

O
W

IN
G

 A
G

E
N

D
A

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

 F
O

R
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
 -

 D
E

T
A

IL
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
of

fic
er

 
dr

af
ts

 b
rie

fin
g 

on
 

he
ad

lin
e 

is
su

es

8.
1.

1
C

h
ai

rm
an

’s
M

ee
ti

n
g

Is
su

es
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

P
ro

po
sa

ls
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

ac
tio

n

E
ve

ry
 th

re
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 –
 a

ge
nd

a 
fo

r 
ne

xt
 P

&
F

 
fo

rm
ul

at
ed

P
&

F
 d

ra
ft 

ag
en

da
 

de
sp

at
ch

ed
 w

ith
 

ac
tio

n 
sh

ee
t 

C
ha

irm
an

’s
re

po
rt

 d
ra

fte
d 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed

A
ge

nd
a

fin
al

is
ed

P
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 
F

in
a

n
ce

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e

C
ha

irm
an

’s
R

ep
or

t

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Is
su

es
 (

fr
om

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
le

ad
s)

S
ub

st
an

tiv
e

ite
m

s

R
ef

er
en

ce
 r

ep
or

t 
to

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

S
cr

ut
in

y

C
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

/ o
th

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 / 

sc
ru

tin
y 

le
ad

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

R
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 
O

&
S

 a
gr

ee
d 

C
om

m
itt

ee
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 p

er
f 

le
ad

s

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
 

an
d

pe
rf

 le
ad

s 

A
pp

ro
va

l o
f f

in
al

 
re

po
rt

 / 
fin

di
ng

s 
at

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

O
&

S
 / 

P
&

F

S
co

re
ca

rd
s,

 in
fo

 
fr

om
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

s,
 o

th
er

 
re

le
va

nt
 r

aw
 d

at
a 

28



 

 
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Policy and Performance 
Sub Committee 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

25th March 2010 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – 
Extended Schools Review – Six 
Month Update 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements – Director of Schools and Children’s Development  
Exempt: 
 

No  

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Overview and Scrutiny Review Report – Extended Schools as Community Resources 
 Appendix 2 – Cabinet Report 17 September 2009.  Appendix 3 – Moving towards outstanding extended Services  
Appendix 4 – Community and Environment report for Grants Advisory Panel 19 November 2009  

 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out an update on the progress against the nine 
recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Report titled 
Review of Extended Schools As Community Resources 
 
FOR INFORMATION 

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 29 to 132 

29



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
The Extended Schools Review was carried out as part of the Overview and 
Scrutiny 2008/09 work programme to assess progress and identify gaps in the 
current level of extended services.  The review also considered how 
successful schools were in providing access to the core offer of services and 
the objective for them to be a key community resource.  Their long term 
sustainability was another area the review group considered as part of the 
review.  The review was carried out between September 2008 and March 
2009 and the full report is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
The final report detailed the main recommendations arising from the review 
and the first report responded to those recommendations.  This report is an 
update on the work-taking place against the recommendations. 
 
Current situation 
Harrow is regarded as high performing, by the Training and Development 
Agency, the Government’s monitoring body for extended schools. 
 
Consistently, the target for the number of extended schools meeting the full 
core offer has been exceeded and, as of February 2010, 98% of schools (64) 
are meeting the core offer which is ahead of the national average of 94% and 
Harrow is on target to achieve the September 2010 trajectory of 65 schools 
(100%) meeting the core offer.  This significant achievement places Harrow 
as one of the top ten London authorities.  
 
Children’s Services welcomed the Overview and Scrutiny review of extended 
schools and the recommendations set out in the final report. Work has taken 
place to reflect on and implement the recommendations. 
 
Set out below is the recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny, the initial 
response to that recommendation from Children’s Services and then, in italics 
an update report on further progress or activity. 
 
Recommendations and Response 

 
1.  Officers ensure that robust systems of support, advice and challenge 
are in place for all clusters to help develop the knowledge and expertise 
of each cluster co-ordinator and their lead head teacher. 
 
Response 
A robust support, advice and challenge programme is in place for all clusters 
which includes: 
 

• 1:1 meeting with cluster co-ordinator as and when needed  
• A termly meeting between the lead head teacher and the linked advisor 

to the cluster 
• A termly meeting with the cluster co-ordinators 
• Shared annual performance monitoring of the cluster co-ordinator  

30



 

• A termly meeting with the lead head teachers, linked advisors and 
senior officers  from Children’s Services 

• The production of an annual cluster profile for all clusters to support the 
development of the annual cluster action plan. 

 
Arrangements are in place with all clusters to agree further specific advice 
and support which ensures targets are met, action plans are developed and 
monitoring and evaluation support is provided. 
 
Continyou, an external training provider for extended schools, have provided 
focussed training support for all cluster co-ordinators each half term for two 
terms.  Marketing and promotional training has also been provided for all 
cluster co-ordinators. 
   
Update 
 All of the activity set out in the original response is still in place. In the 
February 2010 report the TDA commended the “effective structures and 
mechanisms in place for developing strategy” 
 
All clusters were issued with updated cluster profiles in February 2010.  These 
have been used to support cluster action planning for 2010/11. 
 
The Lead Headteacher meetings continue to take place on a termly basis.  
The Spring Term 2010 meeting focused on partnership working with Health in 
particular meeting the health needs of children and young people and their 
families who are newly arrived in the country or who have particular needs. 
  
2. Clusters co-ordinators and head teachers to be encouraged to 
consider the introduction of the appointment of parent ambassadors for 
hard to reach communities in their local area/cluster to look at whether 
such a scheme would be beneficial to the community. 
 
Response 
It is acknowledged that the work of the parent ambassadors has been 
particularly successful in the Canons Cluster and the impact of their work on 
outcomes for children and their families is increasingly evident as set out in 
the Overview and Scrutiny Report.   
 
All clusters have in place staff and strategies to provide targeted support to 
parents. The linked advisors, through their meetings with the cluster co-
ordinators and the lead head teachers continue to explore the effectiveness 
and sustainability of the strategies they have in place and to support, where 
possible an increase in the number of parent ambassadors. 
 
The parenting co-ordinator is working across the children’s centre and 
extended schools agenda to strategically co-ordinate and develop parenting 
provision across the borough.  All cluster co-ordinators are engaged with the 
work of the parenting co-ordinator. 
 
Update 
There are now approximately 20 Parent Ambassadors working in 6 clusters.  
All clusters have staff employed in a role similar to that of a Parent 
Ambassador.  A course for those working as Parent Ambassadors will be 

31



 

commencing in April with 6 of the 7 clusters nominating staff and others to 
take part and work towards a level 2 qualification. 
 
3. That cluster groups develop a termly pro-forma for publicising 
activities and ensure a copy goes home with each child in the cluster. 
The information should also be widely available through community 
venues such as libraries, children’s centres, health centres and relevant 
websites. 
 
4.  Other ways of communicating with the community at large should be 
investigated so that members of the community not directly involved 
with schools are aware of the services and activities available. 
 
 
Response 
It has been agreed that for the 2010/2011 plans all activity will be 
communicated across all clusters in a consistent way ensuring that every child 
in every clusters receives information about the activities they and their 
parents can access.   
 
The Marketing and Information Professional within Integrated Early Years and 
Community Services will continue to work with the clusters to ensure 
information is of the highest quality and maximum use is being made of all 
media to publicise cluster activities whilst ensuring value for money. 
 
 
5.  Elected Members who are also school governors should work to 
raise the profile of extended schools within the schools they govern, in 
their individual wards and in the community at large. 
 
Response 
Ofsted have issued a new evaluation schedule for schools which was 
effective from September 2009.  The new schedule places on schools and 
their Governing Body the responsibility to evidence how extended services 
are contributing to outcomes for children and young people. 
 
Update 
Since September 2009 7 schools have been inspected and 4 have been 
graded as outstanding.  This significant achievement demonstrates that 
schools are showing through their Ofsted Self Evaluation Form the positive 
impact that Extended School activity is having on outcomes for Children.  This 
work has been supported by the “Moving to Outstanding” document written for 
Harrow Schools by officers from Achievement and Inclusion and the 
Integrated Early Years and Community Services – A copy enclosed as 
Appendix 3 
 
The Training and Development Agency have developed a toolkit for governors 
on extended schools.  Training on the use and implementation of this toolkit is 
provided annually.  General information and further support for governors is 
available through the Governors newsletter, which is published termly. 
 
 
 

32



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Steps should be taken to ensure that strategic working was ongoing 
to bring together expertise from the clusters and local authority officers 
together in the integration of extended schools and children’s centres. 
As further children’s centres are established and opened full advantage 
should be taken of working together. 
 
Response 
The support, advice and challenge programme for cluster lead head teachers 
and the cluster co-ordinators has continued ensuring that expertise is 
maximised. 
 
The children’s centres and extended school clusters are now aligned which 
ensures the potential for planning and working together to improve outcomes 
for children, young people, their families and the local community. 
 
Strategic partnership working between the clusters and the children’s centres 
is a sustainability strand which is becoming increasingly embedded which is 
supporting staff to be shared across both initiatives. 
 
The TDA again, regard the structures and processes in place as high quality 
supporting effective alignment and joint working. (TDA note of visit February 
2010) 
 
Update 
11 Children’s Centres are now designated and operational.  There are some 
excellent examples of joint working which have improved outcomes for 
children and families these include 
 
A partnership between Canons Cluster and Chandos Children’s Centre which 
funds and supports a Traveller sewing group. 
 
Joint funded holiday activity for children and young people at Cedars 
Children’s Centre who attend the schools in the Children First Cluster. 
 
Partnership working between 6 clusters, the Ethnic Minority Achievement 
Service and the Children’s Centres to provide for English for Speakers of 
Other Languages (ESOL) , particularly mothers with very young babies. 
 
7. All agencies involved in extended schools needed to develop an 
overall vision of how all schools and cluster groups develop plans for 
mainstreaming and in turn sustaining extended schools activities across 
clusters post 2011.  
 
Response 
Providing Extended School services is the responsibility of individual schools.  
The cluster approach ensures that schools can: 

33



 

� prioritise services that are shown as needed by their pupils, their 
families and the local community 

� provide effective signposting to services provided by other schools in 
the cluster 

� can provide services such as holiday childcare on a cluster wide basis  
 
Increasingly the funding for Extended School services rest with schools and 
the Extended School Clusters.  All indications are that the funding for these 
services will be targeted directly at schools and not at or through local 
authorities. 
 
Children’s Services and in particular Integrated Early Years and Community 
Services have lead responsibility for supporting schools and partner agencies 
and sustainability as a key theme is now part of the cluster action planning 
process with the 2009/10 cluster action plans requiring all clusters to set out 
the activities they would be looking to sustain and the actions they would be 
putting in place to achieve sustainability. 
 
The Head of Integrated Early Years and Community Services meets regularly 
with key officers from partner agencies to discuss service planning beyond 
2011. This work is supported by the strategic work of the Children and Young 
People’s Strategic Partnership.  
 
Update 
Some significant meetings have taken place this term (Spring 2010) to further 
discussions about partnership working beyond 2011.  It is anticipated that this 
work will continue and become increasingly embedded in the work of the 
Harrow Children’s Trust. 
 
8. A challenge panel/ further review should be held in six months time to 
address the progress of the recommendations that had been put forward 
from the review group and to also explore the community lettings and 
community resources element of extended schools. 
 
9. In line with the recommendation above, schools should be examining 
services they can provide to the community including making their 
premises available at a reasonable cost. 
 
Update 
The Community and Environment Directorate are leading on the community 
lettings and community resources element of extended schools.  A report and 
action plan was presented to Overview and Scrutiny on 12 October 2009 and 
agreed by the Grant Advisory Panel on 19 November 2009. 
  
Work to progress this further is now on hold until after the elections.   
 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
It is not anticipated that any further update reports will be submitted. 
 

34



 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
In 2010/11 funding of £1,525,976 is available for the extended schools 
programme.  The majority of the funding, £1,246,265, is allocated through ring 
fenced Standards Fund grant which has to be passported to schools. The 
remaining funding of £279,711 is allocated through Area Based Grant  
 
Funding for 2011/12 has not been confirmed but as stated in the report all 
indications are that the funding for extended schools services going forward 
will be targeted directly at schools and not at the Local Authority.  
 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 

This update report further endorses the Children’s Services response to the 
recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny final report and 
acknowledges the work of extended schools in supporting the Council’s 
following corporate priorities:  
 

• Improving support for vulnerable people  
• Building stronger communities. 

 

 
      on behalf of the 
Name: Emma Stabler. √  Chief Financial Officer 
  Date: 15th March 2010    
 
 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Wendy Beeton, Head of Integrated Early Years and Community 
Services. 
Telephone: 020 8416 8830  
 
Background Papers:   
 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Review of Extended Schools as Community 
Resources April 2009 
Report on Scrutiny Review – Extended Schools as Community Resources to 
Cabinet 17 September 2009 
Report on Community Lettings Action Plan to Grants Advisory Panel 19 
November 2009  
 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



  Appendix 2 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

17 September 2009 

Subject: 
 

Scrutiny Review – Extended Schools as 
Community Resources 

Key Decision: No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Paul Clark, Corporate Director of Children’s 
Services 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Schools and Children’s 
Portfolio Holder 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Overview and Scrutiny Review 
Report – Extended Schools as Community 
Resources (not included as elsewhere in P&F 
agenda)  
 
Appendix 2 - Minute of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Appendix 3 - Report considered by Overview and 
Scrutiny. 
 
 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out the response from Children’s Services to the 
recommendations of the scrutiny review of extended schools as community 
resources 
 
Recommendations:  
 
Cabinet is requested to: 
 

Endorse this report and the Children’s Services response to the 
recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Review Report – 

93



  Appendix 2 

 

Extended Schools as Community Resources 
 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
Endorsing the Children’s Services response to the recommendations from the 
Overview and Scrutiny final report acknowledges the work of extended 
schools in supporting the Council’s following corporate priorities:  
 

• Improving support for vulnerable people  
• Building stronger communities. 

 
 
Background  
The Extended Schools Review was carried out as part of the Overview and 
Scrutiny 2008/09 work programme to assess progress and identify gaps in the 
current level of extended services.  The review also considered how 
successful schools were in providing access to the core offer of services and 
the objective for them to be a key community resource.  Their long term 
sustainability was another area the review group considered as part of the 
review.  The review was carried out between September 2008 and March 
2009 and the full report is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
The research methods used included reviewing a wide range of desktop 
research, evidence submitted from key officers, consultation with relevant 
stakeholders and actually going out to observe extended schools services and 
activities in practice. 
 
The final report details the main recommendations arising from the review and 
this report responds to those recommendations. 
 
Current situation 
Harrow is regarded as high performing, by the Training and Development 
Agency, the Government’s monitoring body for extended schools. 
 
Consistently, the target for the number of extended schools meeting the full 
core offer has been exceeded and, of as August 2009, 65 of 68 schools have 
demonstrated that they are meeting and sustaining delivery of the full core 
offer.  The remaining three schools have a further year to achieve full core 
offer status and it is expected that these schools will fulfil this requirement well 
before September 2010.  
 
This significant achievement places Harrow as one of the top ten London 
authorities.  
 
Children’s Services welcomes and values the Overview and Scrutiny review 
of extended schools and the recommendations set out in the final report.   
 
 
 

94



  Appendix 2 

 

 
 
 
 
Recommendations and Response 

 
1.  Officers ensure that robust systems of support, advice and challenge 
are in place for all clusters to help develop the knowledge and expertise 
of each cluster co-ordinator and their lead head teacher. 
 
Response 
A robust support, advice and challenge programme is in place for all clusters 
which includes: 
 

• 1:1 meeting with cluster co-ordinator as and when needed  
• A termly meeting between the lead head teacher and the linked advisor 

to the cluster 
• A termly meeting with the cluster co-ordinators 
• Shared annual performance monitoring of the cluster co-ordinator  
• A termly meeting with the lead head teachers, linked advisors and 

senior officers  from Children’s Services 
• The production of an annual cluster profile for all clusters to support the 

development of the annual cluster action plan. 
 
Arrangements are in place with all clusters to agree further specific advice 
and support which ensures targets are met, action plans are developed and 
monitoring and evaluation support is provided. 
 
Continyou, an external training provider for extended schools, have provided 
focussed training support for all cluster co-ordinators each half term for two 
terms.  Marketing and promotional training has also been provided for all 
cluster co-ordinators. 
   
2. Clusters co-ordinators and head teachers to be encouraged to 
consider the introduction of the appointment of parent ambassadors for 
hard to reach communities in their local area/cluster to look at whether 
such a scheme would be beneficial to the community. 
 
Response 
It is acknowledged that the work of the parent ambassadors has been 
particularly successful in the Canons Cluster and the impact of their work on 
outcomes for children and their families is increasingly evident as set out in 
the Overview and Scrutiny Report.   
 
All clusters have in place staff and strategies to provide targeted support to 
parents. The linked advisors, through their meetings with the cluster co-
ordinators and the lead head teachers, will continue to explore the 
effectiveness and sustainability of the strategies they have in place and to 
support, where possible an increase in the number of parent ambassadors. 
 
The parenting co-ordinator, works across the children’s centre and extended 
schools agenda to strategically co-ordinate and develop parenting provision 

95



  Appendix 2 

 

across the borough.  All cluster co-ordinators are engaged with the work of 
the parenting co-ordinator.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. That cluster groups develop a termly pro-forma for publicising 
activities and ensure a copy goes home with each child in the cluster. 
The information should also be widely available through community 
venues such as libraries, children’s centres, health centres and relevant 
websites. 
 
4.  Other ways of communicating with the community at large should be 
investigated so that members of the community not directly involved 
with schools are aware of the services and activities available. 
 
 
Response 
Preliminary discussions have taken place with lead head teachers and cluster 
co-ordinators about communicating cluster activities in a consistent way.  The 
Marketing and Information Professional within Integrated Early Years and 
Community Services will be working with the clusters on this in the Autumn 
Term and ensuring that maximum use is being made of all media to publicise 
cluster activities whilst ensuring value for money. 
 
 
5.  Elected Members who are also school governors should work to 
raise the profile of extended schools within the schools they govern, in 
their individual wards and in the community at large. 
 
Response 
Ofsted have issued a new evaluation schedule for schools which will be 
effective from September 2009.  The new schedule places on schools and 
their Governing Body the responsibility to evidence how extended services 
are contributing to outcomes for children and young people. 
 
Officers from Children’s Services have been developing a support tool for 
school leaders and managers and their governors to support their preparation 
for Ofsted and the completion of the Self Evaluation Framework.  The support 
tool will be available in draft from the 14 September. 
 
The Training and Development Agency have developed a toolkit for governors 
on extended schools.  Training on the use and implementation of this toolkit is 
provided annually.  The next training date is 20 October 2009 at 7pm at the 
Teachers’ Centre.  General information and further support for governors is 
available from Integrated Early Years and Community Services. 
 
6. Steps should be taken to ensure that strategic working was ongoing 
to bring together expertise from the clusters and local authority officers 
together in the integration of extended schools and children’s centres. 

96



  Appendix 2 

 

As further children’s centres are established and opened full advantage 
should be taken of working together. 
 
Response 
The support, advice and challenge programme for cluster, lead head teachers 
and the cluster co-ordinators will continue ensuring that expertise is 
maximised. 
 
The children’s centres and extended school clusters are now aligned which 
ensures the potential for planning and working together to improve outcomes 
for children, young people, their families and the local community. 
 
Strategic partnership working between the clusters and the children’s centres 
is a sustainability strand which will become more developed as the remaining 
children’s centres become operational. 
 
7. All agencies involved in extended schools needed to develop an 
overall vision of how all schools and cluster groups develop plans for 
mainstreaming and in turn sustaining extended schools activities across 
clusters post 2011.  
 
Response 
Providing Extended School services is the responsibility of individual schools.  
The cluster approach ensures that schools can: 

� prioritise services that are shown as needed by their pupils, their 
families and the local community 

� provide effective signposting to services provided by other schools in 
the cluster 

� can provide services such as holiday childcare on a cluster wide basis  
 
Increasingly the funding for Extended School services rest with schools and 
the Extended School Clusters.  All indications are that the funding for these 
services will be targeted directly at schools and not at or through local 
authorities. 
 
Children’s Services and in particular Integrated Early Years and Community 
Services have lead responsibility for supporting schools and partner agencies 
and sustainability as a key theme is now part of the cluster action planning 
process with the 2009/10 cluster action plans requiring all clusters to set out 
the activities they would be looking to sustain and the actions they would be 
putting in place to achieve sustainability. 
 
The Head of Integrated Early Years and Community Services meets regularly 
with key officers from partner agencies to discuss service planning beyond 
2011. This work is supported by the strategic work of the Children and Young 
People’s Strategic Partnership. 
 
8. A challenge panel/ further review should be held in six months time to 
address the progress of the recommendations that had been put forward 
from the review group and to also explore the community lettings and 
community resources element of extended schools. 
 

97



  Appendix 2 

 

9. In line with the recommendation above, schools should be examining 
services they can provide to the community including making their 
premises available at a reasonable cost. 
 
Response 
Community and Cultural Services are leading the development of the Third 
Sector Strategy. The Head of Integrated Early Years and Community Services 
is a member of the working group representing Children’s Services. 
 
The working group is required as one of its streams of work, to look at 
community lettings of schools.  It is planned to produce a document for 
consultation during the Autumn Term 2009. 
 
A challenge panel to review progress against the recommendations is 
welcomed. 
 
 
Financial Implications 
In 2009/10 funding of £1,277k is available for the extended schools 
programme. This is financed from a ring fenced Standards Fund Grant of 
£597k and Area Based Grant of £680k. Any costs associated with the 
recommendations will be met from within these resources. 
 
Performance Issues 
The extended schools programme and actions to address the 
recommendations from the scrutiny review will contribute to the achievement 
of NI 88 Extended Schools, which is an LAA target: 
 
 2008-9 Q1 2009-10 LAA target Comparator data 
NI 88 Extended 
Schools: 
% of Harrow 
schools 
providing full 
core offer  

88% 96% 2008-9 – 70% 
2009-10 - 85% 
2010-11 – 100% 

Not yet available 

 
Current performance is significantly above target. 
 
CAA Impact 
Success in the extended schools programme will provide evidence for the 
following key question in the Area Assessment: 
 

• How well are the outcomes and improvements needed being 
delivered?    

 
It will also have a positive impact on the Use of Resources Assessment and in 
particular the following key line of enquiry: 
 

• 3.2 Does the organisation manage its assets effectively to help 
deliver its strategic priorities and service needs? 

 
Environmental Impact 
There are no environmental considerations specific to this report. 

98



  Appendix 2 

 

 
 

Risk Management Implications 
There are no risk management implications arising from the recommendations 
or the responses from Children’s Services. 
 
 
 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Emma Stabler •  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 26 August 2009 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Matthew Adams •  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 26 August 2009 

   
 

  
 
 
 
 
Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: David Harrington •  Divisional Director 
  
Date: 26 August 2009 

  (Strategy and 
Improvement) 

 
 
 
 
 
Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: John Edwards •  Divisional Director 
  
Date: 26 August 2009 

  (Environmental 
Services) 

 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 

99



  Appendix 2 

 

 
Contact:  Wendy Beeton, Head of Integrated Early Years and Community 
Services 
 
Background Papers:   
Appendix 1: Overview and Scrutiny Review Report – Extended Schools 
as Community Resources. 

100



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\ExtendedSchoolsOSMin563ScrutinyReviewExtendedSchoolsasCommunityRe
sources0.doc/1 

HARROW COUNCIL 
 
CABINET – 16 JULY 2009 
 
REFERENCE FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 11 JUNE 2009 
 
Scrutiny Review - Extended Schools as Community Resources   
 
The Committee received a report of the Divisional Director of Partnership 
Development and Performance, which set out the findings and recommendations of 
the Scrutiny Review of Extended Schools as Community Resources.  
 
The Chairman of the Review Group explained how the light touch review had been 
conducted, as a result of which it had not been possible for the Group to visit all 
schools or clusters.  The range of clusters that had been visited ranged from good 
to poor.  Those that could not be visited were sent a questionnaire to complete and 
return.  The Review Group had carried out a great deal of desktop work in 
achieving its findings. 
 
Members were informed that the Review Group had found that extended schools 
added value, particularly for the vulnerable communities.  The appointment of 
parent ambassadors was welcomed and it was hoped that the practice would 
spread to other schools.   
 
Members were of the view that it was appropriate for the Performance and Finance 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee rather than the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
monitor progress of the recommendations.  They also agreed that the report should 
be sent to Cabinet instead of the Portfolio Holder. 
 
The Chairman of the Review Group drew attention to the recommendations of the 
Review Group and it was 
 
RESOLVED:  That (1) the report and the recommendations (set out at appendix 2 
to these minutes) of the Scrutiny Review Group on Extended Schools as 
Community Resources be endorsed; 
 
(2)  the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee monitor progress of the 
recommendations and receive a report in six months’ time; 
 
(3)  the report be submitted to Cabinet. 
 
(See also Minute 550). 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
Background Documents: 
Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on 11 June 2009. 
Officer Report considered at the 11 June 2009 meeting.  

 
Contact Officer:  
Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer   
Tel:  020 8424 1881 
Email:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

101



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\ExtendedSchoolsOSMin563ScrutinyReviewExtendedSchoolsasCommunityRe
sources0.doc/2 

APPENDIX 
 

Scrutiny Review – Extended Schools as Community Resources 
  
Recommendations 
Officers ensure that robust systems of support, advice and challenge are in place 
for all clusters to help develop the knowledge and expertise of each Cluster Co-
ordinator and their lead headteacher. 
 
Clusters Co-ordinators and headteachers be encouraged to consider the 
introduction of the appointment of Parent Ambassadors for hard to reach 
communities in their local area/cluster to look at whether such a scheme would be 
beneficial to the community. 
 
That cluster groups develop a termly pro-forma for publicising activities and ensure 
a copy goes home with each child in the cluster. The information should also be 
widely available through community venues such as libraries, children’s centres, 
health centres and relevant websites. 
 
Other ways of communicating with the community at large should be investigated 
so that members of the community not directly involved with schools are aware of 
the services and activities available. 
 
Elected Members who are also school governors should work to raise the profile of 
extended schools within the schools they govern, in their individual wards and in 
the community at large. 
 
Steps should be taken to ensure that strategic working was ongoing to bring 
together expertise from the clusters and local authority officers together in the 
integration of Extended Schools and Children’s Centres. As further Children’s 
Centres were established and opened full advantage should be taken of working 
together. 
 
All agencies involved in Extended Schools needed to develop an overall vision of 
how all schools and cluster groups develop plans for mainstreaming and in turn 
sustaining extended schools activities across clusters post 2011.  
 
A challenge panel/ further review should be held in 6 months time to address the 
progress of the recommendations that had been put forward from the review group 
and to also explore the community lettings and community resources element of 
Extended Schools. 
 
In line with the recommendation above, schools should be examining services they 
can provide to the community including making their premises available at a 
reasonable cost. 

 

102



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 
 

11 June 2009 
Subject: 
 

Scrutiny review – Extended Schools as 
Community Resources 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director of Partnership 
Development and Performance 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Christine Bednell, Children’s Services 
Portfolio Holder 
 
Councillor Anjana Patel, Schools and Children’s 
Services Development Portfolio Holder 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
Enclosures: 
 

Final report of the review group 
 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out the details, findings and recommendations of the scrutiny 
review of extended schools as community resources.  
 
Recommendations:  
 

1. Endorse the report and its recommendations; and 
2. For Overview and Scrutiny Committee to monitor the continuing 

progress of the recommendations in six months and receive the first 
progress update in six months. 

3. To forward the report on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration 
 
 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
The extended schools review was carried out as part of the Overview and 
Scrutiny 2008/09 work programme to address the progress to date and any 
gaps in the current level of extended schools services.  The review was also 

103



 

carried out to assess how far extended schools are succeeding in meeting the 
core offer and the objective for them to be a key community resource. Their 
long term sustainability was another area the review group considered as part 
of the review. The review was carried out between September 2008 and 
March 2009. 
 
The investigation was carried out by reviewing a wide range of desktop 
research, evidence submitted from key officers, consultation with relevant 
stakeholders and actually going out to witness extended schools services and 
activities in practice. 
 
The final report details the main recommendations arising from the review and 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to endorse these 
recommendations.  
 
 
Resources, costs and risks 
Any costs associated with these recommendations will have to be met from 
within existing resources.  
 
Staffing/workforce  
There are no direct staffing or workforce considerations specific to this report. 
 
Equalities impact 
The review group ensured the consideration of equalities implications formed 
part of this investigation as equalities is integral to the principles and the role 
of extended schools. 
 
Legal Implications 
None 
 
Financial Implications 
Any costs arising from the recommendations will have to be contained from 
existing budgets. 
 
Performance Issues 
There are no performance considerations specific to this report.  
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
This is not required for this report 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:   
Fola Beckley, Scrutiny Officer, fola.beckley@harrow.gov.uk  
 
Background Papers:   
 
Detailed in the full report 
 
If appropriate, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
1. Consultation  YES  
2. Corporate Priorities  YES  
 

104



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 1 of 21 

Element 1 Culture and Ethos 
To what extent has the school developed a positive culture and ethos which is based on the extended services agenda and with children’s needs 
at its’ heart? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

●    
Good Evidence Actions 

● Lead persons use multi-professional contributions to 
develop the extended services 

● The extended services ethos of the school is an integral 
part of the induction process for all staff 

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now:- 

● Placing equal value on the extended school services and 
how it contributes to higher attainment through a multi-
disciplinary approach. 

  

105



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 2 of 21 

Element 2 Governance 
To what extent are there clear and appropriate arrangements for the governance of extended services? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● The school has plans for an extended services committee 
to be established. 

● Extended services activity and development is a standing 
item on all Governing Body agendas. 

● The Governing Body terms of reference includes extended 
services in its vision statement 

● There is an awareness of the need for Governor training 
on the extended schools agenda to support strategic 
decision making. 

● Governors have been given written information to inform 
them about the extended school agenda. 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● The Governing Body regularly hears reports about the 
progress of extended services. 

● The Extended Services Committee is representative of 
diverse multi-agency involvement. 

● The Extended Services Committee reviews its Terms of 
Reference annually to reflect extended services 
developments and progress.  

● Governors attend training which supports their knowledge 
of the extended services agenda. 

  

106



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 3 of 21 

Element 2 Governance 
To what extent are there clear and appropriate arrangements for the governance of extended services? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now: 

● Supporting other members of the Governing Body visit 
extended school activities in order to accurately gauge its 
impact and report back to the Extended Services 
Committee 

● Ensuring governors access 1 day updating/up-skilling 
activity per year on extended services.  

● Ensuring the Extended Services Committee and whole 
Governing Body is actively involved in action planning, 
decision making and evaluating extended services. 

  

 

107



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 4 of 21 

Element 3 Roles and Responsibilities  
To what extent are the roles and responsibilities for those managing and leading extended school activities clearly defined and understood? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 
 Systems and routines are being developed which cover as   
 appropriate: 

● Staff deployment 
◦ Specific roles 
◦ Responsibility and accountability 
◦ Delegations 
◦ Access 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
 

● Systems and routines are in place to cover as appropriate: 
◦ Staff deployment 
◦ Specific roles 
◦ Responsibility and accountability 
◦ Delegations 

●  

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now: 

● Using embedded, established, agreed guidance, protocols 
and policies to manage; 

◦ Staff deployment 
◦ Specific roles 
◦ Responsibility and accountability 
◦ Delegations 

  

108



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 5 of 21 

Element 4 Financial resource and accountability 
To what extent are systems and processes in place to ensure financial probity and effective use of resources, allocated for extended services? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● The lead person has an understanding that to secure 
funding from the cluster a project plan must be in place 

● The lead person understands the need to monitor the 
funding  and to report back to the cluster on its use. 

● Allocated funding is used fully with no over or under spend 
● The school keeps funding for extended services in line 
with the requirements of ………….. 

● The school has in place transparent criteria for allocating 
subsidised or free places to support access to extended 
services. 

 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
• The funding is linked to the achievement and sustainability 
of the core offer. 

● Lead person has some processes in place to ensure that 
the extended services have access to appropriate 
resources. 

● The lead person uses relevant data to project plan for 
future provision and request funding. 

● Some funding is devolved to appropriate staff within 
delegated limits to support specific roles and 
responsibilities.  

● The lead person has knowledge of local partners, their 
services and what they cost. 

● Ensuring clarity and understanding is in place to know 
what services are offered free of charge and what needs 
funding. 

 

  

 

109



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 6 of 21 

Element 4 Financial resource and accountability 
To what extent are systems and processes in place to ensure financial probity and effective use of resources, allocated for extended services? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now:- 
 

● Ensuring efficient and effective management of finance, 
linked with data attracts additional internal and external 
funding services. 

● Ensuring skilled and experienced personnel are delivering 
embedded services through local agreements and Service 
Level Agreements that are sustainable. Ensuring strong 
partnerships ensure the ongoing and sustainable provision 
of extended services. 

● Regularly reviewing equality of access to subsidised or 
free places in an open and transparent way. 

● Ensuring processes are in place to ensure that all 
extended services can run efficiently and effectively 
through complete resource management. 

  

 

110



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 7 of 21 

 
Element 5 Staff performance and development 
How effectively is the delivery of extended services activity managed and developed? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● Staff are made aware of the extended services agenda 
and the activity in and through the school. 

● The lead person has an ability to identify the strengths of 
individuals to maximise their potential to contribute to the 
extended services agenda. 

● Lead person understand individual’s roles and 
responsibilities and actively encourage other staff to do the 
same. 

● The lead person is aware of how their own and staff efforts 
contribute to the success of extended services. 

● Recognition that those contributing to extended services 
provision may need the support of agreed processes for 
line management. 

● Lead person has full awareness of their cluster and cluster 
co-ordinator and is actively engaged with their work. 

● There is an awareness that performance appraisal 
meetings need to consider whether it is appropriate to 
include targets that link or include extended services 
provision. 

● There is an understanding that some complexity may exist 
around line management and C.P.D. arrangements 

  

 

111



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 8 of 21 

Element 5 Staff performance and development 
How effectively is the delivery of extended services activity managed and developed? 
Good Evidence Actions 

● There is a staff hand book for all staff involved from the 
school to support their understanding of the extended 
services agenda and roles and responsibilities of school 
staff and others. 

● The school offers opportunities for networking with the 
purpose of increasing knowledge of partners roles remits 
and responsibilities to support sign posting and referrals. 

● Processes are being considered and put in place to 
support staff members working under the direction of 
someone other than their line manager. 

● Appraisal targets include extended services work.  
● Processes are being developed to ensure management 
and C.P.D. needs are identified and being addressed. 

  

 112



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 9 of 21 

Element 5 Staff performance and development 
How effectively is the delivery of extended services activity managed and developed? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now 

● Ensuring staff have an enhanced understanding of 
extended services which leads to effective sign posting for 
both young people and parents/carers. 

● Ensuring staff can clearly define and articulate their 
specific role within extended services and how it relates to 
the roles of co workers and outcomes for children. 

● Through planned networking recognising the potential of 
partners in increasing attainment levels and achieving 
targets in the S.I.P. 

● Ensuring senior leadership and staff teams awareness 
supports the content of S.E.F and S.I.P. and leads to 
positive outcomes in Ofsted inspections. 

● Recognising the Cluster Co-ordinator as a key person to 
contribute to the success of the school achieving the core 
offer and beyond. 

● Ensuring examples of good practice appear within the 
S.E.F. demonstrating links to other initiatives. 

● Ensuring line managers are responsive and accessible to 
staff through an agreed protocol to support the 
development of cohesive working relationships. 

● Ensuring extended services work is accounted for within 
CPD. 

  

 

113



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 10 of 21 

 
Element 6 Voice of Children and Young People 
To what extent does the voice of the child/young person inform and lead the work of the extended services? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● Children and young people are recognised as knowing 
what they need and they can give their views in a variety 
of ways. 

● Cluster plans are influenced by the school council’s 
knowledge of needs which they give through a range of 
communications. 

● Staff are aware of Harrow’s Participation Strategy which 
recognises the voice of the child/young person. 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● Children and young people are acknowledged and 
respected as equal partners in the decision making 
process to develop quality extended services. 

● The school council representatives are supported to 
explore differentiated techniques, which allow the inclusion 
of all children and young people in contributing to 
extended services decision making. 

● Staff are supported and facilitated to listen and hear the 
children and young peoples voice through agreed 
processes. 

● Key staff have been trained and connect with the 
participation team to accurately interpret and understand 
the children and young peoples voice. 

  

 

114



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 11 of 21 

Element 6 Voice of Children and Young People 
To what extent does the voice of the child/young person inform and lead the work of the extended services? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now:- 

● Ensuring the school council is influential in the decision 
making and planning of services. 

● Ensuring all children and young people are actively 
involved in shaping the services provided through 
extended services. 

● Ensuring staff are listening to and hearing children and 
offering them feedback in all aspects of planning and 
delivery of accessible services. 

● Regularly updating their knowledge and skills to support 
ongoing understanding of the participation. 

  

 

115



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 12 of 21 

 
Element 7 Planning 
How effectively is the School planning for it’s own development within the extended services agenda? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● The school is aware of and has a copy of their clusters 
annual action plan 

● The lead person has contributed to the development of the 
cluster action plan and includes priorities for their school. 

● Data following needs analysis has informed the plans 
development. 

● The lead person understands the extended school agenda 
and the core offer 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● The school extended services project plans link to the 
cluster plan. 

● The Governing Body is discussing the plan and is 
increasing its knowledge of the relevance of the plan and 
it’s implementation towards S.I.P and SEF. 

● The school project plans are informed by and link to the 
school improvement plan. 

● The school is connecting with processes that develop the 
cluster plan 

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now:  

● Actively planning to ensure success in raising attainment 
through extended services activity. 

● Actively included in the cluster action plan which reflects 
the schools current S.I.P. and SEF and other key plans. 

● Distributing and communicating the plan to all partners and 
stakeholders and a system is being developed to ensure 
that feedback is welcomed, encouraged and received. 

  

 

116



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 13 of 21 

Element 8 Monitoring service provision 
To what extent are there appropriate procedures in place for monitoring the quality and impact of the extended schools provision? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● The school has sought the support of the cluster to find out 
the views of all potential service users 

● extended services staff and linked partners recognise the 
need to monitor all service provision. 

● Prior to delivery of any service monitoring and evaluation 
arrangements are put in place 

● Consultation and evaluation data is used to inform future 
action planning and targeting of provision.  

● Creative consultation methods are used to monitor equality 
of access to provision. 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● The school has sought the support of the clusters to find 
out about access issues for those considered  to be 
underachieving or most excluded. 

● Ethical, inclusive qualitative and quantative feedback and 
evaluation mechanisms are becoming an integral part of 
extended services activity.  

● The school uses evidence from monitoring of extended 
services activity in the SEF, 

● Data is regularly collected and collated and the information 
used to inform planning and targeting specific needs and 
integrated into the School Improvement Plan. 

● A variety of creative consultation methods are used to 
monitor equality of access to services. 

  

 

117



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 14 of 21 

Element 8 Monitoring service provision 
To what extent are there appropriate procedures in place for monitoring the quality and impact of the extended schools provision? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now: 

● Ensuring monitoring activity finds out about issues of 
diversity and equality with impact assessments used prior 
to, during and post any extended services provision. 

● Demonstrating robust processes for staff and partner 
involvement in monitoring extended services provision. 

● Demonstrating the impact of extended services in SEF’s 
which leads to recognition in the Schools Ofsted inspection 
reports. 

● Practising well developed, ethical, inclusive qualitative and 
quantative feedback and evaluation frameworks. 

  

 

118



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 15 of 21 

Element 9 Partnerships with external stakeholders. 
To what extent has the school ensured that all stakeholders are empowered to contribute to the development and organisation of extended 
services? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● Stakeholders are included in decision making through 
active consultation and involvement. 

● The lead person has an awareness of the contribution that 
different stakeholders can offer in all areas of the core 
offer 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● Children and parents/carers are supported in 
understanding the potential they have to influence the 
extended school services. 

● The lead person uses stakeholder contributions to develop 
extended services. 

● The  

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now: 

● Ensuring the Lead person actively encourages the 
resolution of cultural hurdles, therefore ensuring that 
children and young people, parents and carers remain at 
the centre of all aspects of extended services. 

● Ensuring children, young people and other users’ needs 
are put before professional status and traditional working 
practices. 

● Embedding practice  which supports all stakeholders to 
consistently contribute to achieve wanted and needed 
services. 

  

 

119



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 16 of 21 

Element 10 Partnership with parents/carers and the local community 
To what extent are parents/carers and the local community recognised as partners in ensuring achievement and attainment are raised? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 
The lead person recognises:  

● parent/carers as key partners. 
● Parental involvement as valuable and important in the 
school community. 

● Involving fathers and other positive role models in their 
children’s learning will raise attainment. 

● Community representatives particularly from under 
represented groups as key partners. 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● The diverse community are contributing as partners in the 
development and delivery of extended services. 

● Parents are influential educators and therefore their active 
involvement in planning and participating in extended 
services is essential. 

● The school has established ways of supporting ALL 
parents to contribute to the planning of and participating in 
extended services. 

● Fathers and other male role models are valued and ways 
are found to encourage them to become involved in their 
children’s learning and therefore attainment. 

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The School is now: 

● Collecting views of parents/carers ensuring they are 
representative of the schools diverse community.  

● Implementing successful monitoring and evaluation 
processes to seek, hear and use the voice of the parent.  

● Actively involving fathers and male role models in their 
children’s learning and the development of services. 

● Demonstrating that the local community, particularly under 
represented groups, are key partners empowered to 
contribute to all developments and the organisation of 
services. 

  

 

120



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 17 of 21 

Element 11 Commissioned Partners 
To what extent has the School developed sustainable extended services partnerships to meet the needs of the community they serve? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● Service Level Agreements or written Partnership 
Agreements are in place for activities delivered by all 
external providers. 

● School and cluster profiles and data are used to inform the 
use of commissioned partners to deliver agreed extended 
services. 

● Processes are in place to support positive working 
relations with all key partners who are supporting extended 
service provision 

  

Good Evidence Actions 
● Service Level Agreements or written Partnership 
Agreements are in place and agreed by the Extended 
Services Committee. 

● Community profiles and external data are used to inform 
planning of extended services to raise achievement and 
attainment. 

● Positive working relationships are evident through the 
delivery and evaluation of core offer services provided by 
key partners. 

  

 

121



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 18 of 21 

Element 11 Commissioned Partners 
To what extent has the School developed sustainable extended services partnerships to meet the needs of the community they serve? 
Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The Extended Services Committee is now :- 
● Ensuring robust Service Level Agreements or written 
Partnership Agreements are in place and agreed by 
governors via the Extended Services Committee 

● Ensuring school, community, and partner agency data and 
targets, are used to inform the planning of extended 
services. 

● Recognising and resolving inequality of relationships by 
inducting and involving partners equally within the school 
community. 

● Supporting co-delivery of services through positive 
partnership arrangements which meet the needs of the 
community. 

● Utilizing the joint use of partner and all school staff 
knowledge to support improvements and the quality of 
service provision. 

  

 

122



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 19 of 21 

 
Element 12 Marketing and Communication 
How effectively does the School promote extended services within the wider community? 
Satisfactory Evidence Actions 

● Protocols are being developed to ensure quality standards 
are in place for quality publicity including: 

◦ Proof reading 
◦ Use of images 
◦ Wording 
◦ Styles and fonts 
◦ Plain English 

● An agreed style of publicity has been agreed which takes 
account of access issues. 

● Appropriate use is made of cluster promotional items to 
advertise extended services activity at the school. 

● The skills of staff and others working in extended school 
activity is used to target and support access to information 

  

 

123



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 20 of 21 

Element 12 Promotion of the cluster and its services 
How effectively does the School promote extended services within the wider community? 
Good Evidence Actions 

● Local opportunities are sought out and used to promote 
the extended services on offer. 
The schools Extended Services Committee is working 
towards sensitively and creatively promoting the 
publication of opportunities for children, parents and the 
wider diverse community. 

● Protocols are in place to ensure quality standards are 
recognised for: 

◦ Proof reading 
◦ Use of images 
◦ Wording 
◦ Styles and fonts 
◦ Plain English 

● Promotional items are used appropriately which advertise 
the service provision and the cluster activities. 

  

Outstanding Evidence Actions 
The school is now: 

● Providing relevant and accessible information about 
services. 

● Competently linking into local opportunities and their 
potential to promote services. 

● Sensitively and creatively promoting the publication of 
opportunities for children, parents and the wider diverse 
community. 

  

 

124



 Appendix C – Moving Towards Outstanding Extended Services 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\9\AI00064963\WhatisagoodExtendedSchoolsdraft311.doc  Page 21 of 21 

Appendix 1  
● Integrated Early Years and Community Services 
● Job Centre Plus 
● Family Health Services 
● Health Visiting Services 
● Social Care 
● Families Information Services 
● Children’s Centres 
● Outreach Team 
● Child and Adult Mental Health Services 
● Speech and Language Therapy 
● Community groups and Organisations 
● Local Authority services 

● Community groups and Organisations 
● Local Authority services 
● Pre-schools 
● Private Sector 
● Out of School Childcare 
● Voluntary Sector Parenting Organisations 
● Citizens Advice Bureau 
● Further Education colleges 
● School nursing 
● Cluster Co-ordinators 
● Police 

 

125



126

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 4 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Grants Advisory Panel 
 

Date: 
 

19 November 2009 

Subject: 
 

Community Lettings Action Plan 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Brendon Hills – Corporate Director (Community & 
Environment) 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Jean Lammiman, Portfolio Holder for 
Community and Cultural Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: Community Lettings – Proposed 
Action Plan 2009 - 2011 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report is in response to a request from the Overview and Scrutiny 
meeting on 28 July 2009, for the Corporate Director for Community and 
Environment “to formulate an action plan with a view to improving the 
Council’s community lettings system”.   
 
Recommendations:  
 
The panel is requested to consider and comment on the proposed action plan 
for community lettings as set out in appendix 1 and recommend to the 
Portfolio Holder for Community and Cultural Services: 
 

1. For approval of the plan 
2. That a further report be provided to the panel in June 2010. 

 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
To implement a plan of action to ensure that improvements to community 
lettings are undertaken and monitored. 
 

127



  Appendix 4 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
2. Main options 
  

Appendix 1 sets out the proposed plan of action for community lettings for 
2009/11. The action plan, which has been divided into three strands, is 
detailed below: 
 

 Strand One: Review and improve current process 
 Strand Two: Consultation and engagement 
 Strand Three: Communication and implementation 
 
2.1 Strand One: Review and improve current process 
 
2.1.1 A thorough review of the community lettings arrangements will be undertaken, 

which will involve mapping the facilities available under the current scheme, 
as well as assessing the profile of the main beneficiaries and the type of 
activities that are supported through this resource. 

 
2.1.2 It will be necessary to review the current charging policy and to ascertain the 

true value of the subsidy, as the current rate of 50% is based on a published 
hire rate, but does not relate to the schools private hire rate – which in some 
cases is 5 times more than the community lettings rate.   

 
2.1.3 There is currently no monitoring undertaken of groups accessing the 

community lettings process.  This means that we have no way of knowing 
whether the activity being undertaken is in line with that applied for.  Therefore 
it is proposed that a simple self-assessment tool is developed and introduced. 

 
2.1.4 As the current booking system is very cumbersome, there is a need to simplify 

the process. The Community Development team will also be working closely 
with Business Transformation and Customer Services to explore the 
possibility of using the proposed corporate on-line booking system. 

 
2.2 Strand Two: Consultation and engagement 
 
2.2.1 An option paper will collate and present the findings from the review and set 

out a number of options for consideration. 
  
2.3.1 Initial discussions have already taken place between Community 

Development Team and Early Years and Extended Services, to explore the 
role that schools can play in supporting community lettings.  Both departments 
will work closely together to develop a number of options for consideration. 

 
2.4.1. The following stakeholders will be affected by any changes to the community  

lettings arrangements: schools; caretakers; voluntary and community sector 
and members.  Therefore it will be necessary to consult with these key 
stakeholders on the proposed options for consideration and to consider the 
impact that these proposals may have. 

128



  Appendix 4 

 

 
2.5 Strand Three: Communication and implementation 
 
2.5.1 As this community resource is not widely publicised within the community, it 

will be necessary to disseminate information on the changes to community 
lettings for 2010/11 more extensively, to ensure that this resource is accessed 
by those groups most in need. 

2.5.2 The panel is requested to consider the above and the plans of action set out 
in appendix 1 and make recommendations to the Portfolio Holder for 
Community and Cultural Services for approval. 

 
Section 3 - Implications of recommendations 
 
3.1 Financial Implications 
  

There are no financial implications for the Council in this report. 
 
3.2 Legal Implications 

 
There are no legal implications for the Council in this report. 

 
 

SECTION 4 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

    Name:  Narinderpal Heer �  Chief Financial Officer 
  
 Date:    10 November 2009 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

 Name:  George Curran �  Monitoring Officer 
 
 Date:    6 November 2009 

   
 

 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:   Audrey Salmon, Interim Service Manager, Community Resources and 

Projects (ext: 5332)  
 
Background Papers:   
 
Appendix 1: Community Lettings – Proposed Action Plan 2009 - 2011 
 

129



  Appendix 4 

Appendix 1     
Community Lettings Action Plan 2009/10    
Strand   Action  Lead Officer Timescales Outcome 
1 Review and 

improve current 
process 

Agree action plan with Grants Advisory panel Service Manager Community 
Resources & Projects / 
Integrated Early Years and 
Community services 

Nov-09 Grants Advisory panel approval secured. 

    To map the following: (1) the facilities available, 
(2) the beneficiaries, (3) the type of activities 
delivered, and (4) the extent that these activities 
meet the LAA priorities. 

Community Lettings Officer Feb-10 To have a full picture of the location of existing 
facilities, current uses and match against LAA 
priorities. 

    Review hire rates and subsidy. Service Manager for Community 
Resources and Projects  

Feb-10 To ascertain the true value of the current 
subsidy. 

    Develop and implement the use of a simple, self-
assessment monitoring tool. 

Community Lettings Officer / 
Principal Grants Officer 

Apr-10 To gather feedback on how this resource is 
being used.  

    To review community lettings hire agreements. Community Lettings Officer / 
Principal Grants Officer 

Feb-10 To clarify roles and expectations of the hirer, 
schools and the council. 

    Develop and promote the use of an on-line 
application form. 

Community Lettings Officer / 
Principal Grants Officer 

Apr-10 To improve efficiency and access to the service. 

  

  

Liaise with the Business Transformation project 
re: links to corporate bookings system 

Service Manager for Community 
Resources and Projects with the 
Business Transformation 
Programme 

January 2010 
onwards 

To align community lettings to the corporate 
approach for bookings. 

2 Consultation and 
engagement 

Develop and publish a consultation and 
engagement timetable for schools.  

Service Manager for Community 
Resources and Projects and 
Early Years and Extended 
Services 

Jan-10 Clear consultation and engagement plan with 
schools. 

130



  Appendix 4 

    Develop and publish a consultation and 
engagement timetable for voluntary sector 
organisations. 

Service Manager for Community 
Resources & Projects / 
Integrated Early Years and 
community services / Voluntary 
sector partners 

Jan-10 Clear consultation and engagement plan with 
voluntary and community sector. 

  Develop and agree a key messages approach 
with Integrated Early Years and Community 
services to engage schools using the extended 
schools and community cohesion framework. 

Service Manager Community 
Resources & Projects / 
Integrated Early Years and 
Community services 

Jan-10 Consistent and clear messages communicated 
to schools. 

     
Undertake consultation activities with schools and 
voluntary organisations re: changes to community 
lettings process. 

 
Service Manager for Community 
Resources and Projects  

 
January 2010 - 
April 2010 

 
Key stakeholders consulted and engaged with 
the process. 

    Prepare and present report to Grants Advisory 
Panel regarding proposed changes to community 
lettings process. 

Service Manager - Community 
Resources & Projects 

May-10 Recommendations made to Grants Advisory 
Panel on proposed changes. 

    Undertake an equalities impact assessment on 
proposed changes to community lettings process. 

Service Manager - Community 
Resources & Projects 

May-10 Equality impact considerations considered 
within proposed changes. 

3 Communication 
and 
implementation 

To publicise the new arrangements through the 
Harrow website, libraries, various Harrow 
publications (such as Harrow People and Talking 
Communities), community notice boards, etc 

Service Manager for Community 
Resources and Projects  

Jun-10 Increased awareness of this community 
resource and increased resident satisfaction 
with the council. 

 
 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

PERFORMANCE & FINANCE 
SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 
 

25 March 2010 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Strategy 
for People 2010-2012 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Jon Turner, Divisional Director of Human 
Resources & Development 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Strategy for People 2010-2012 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report presents the draft Strategy for People 2010–12 which is being 
considered for adoption by Cabinet on 18 March 2010.  It will be ‘Crystal Marked’ 
by the Plain English Campaign. 
 
Reason:   
To replace the Strategy for People 2006–09 and align the Council’s people 
management strategy to support achievement of the Council’s vision to be 
recognised as one of the best London Council’s by 2012. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 133 to 176 

133



 
 

 

 
Section 2 – Report 
Delivery of the actions and initiatives identified in the Strategy for People 2006-09 
and the people management projects in the Council Improvement Programme 
have supported the significant performance improvements that the Council has 
made in the last three years. 
 
The draft Strategy for People 2010-12 builds on the success of the past 3 years 
and sets out the next phase in our journey of developing the performance and 
capability of staff and the effectiveness of managers in people management to 
support achievement of the Council’s vision to be recognised as one of the best 
London Council’s by 2012. 
 
The draft Strategy for People will be crystal marked by the Plain English 
Campaign prior to publication. 
 
Options considered 
 
Development of a strategy for how we plan, organise and develop our workforce 
is considered essential to support the achievement of our strategic priorities and 
so no other options were considered. 
 
Background  
 
The Council first adopted a Strategy for People in 2004 and the new Strategy for 
People is the third to be produced. 
 
The context for developing the new Strategy for People has been the aspirations 
and steer provided by the draft national Local Government Workforce Strategy 
2010, areas for workforce improvement indicated by our inspectors and 
regulators, the views of staff and partners, and the council’s vision and corporate 
priorities. 
 
The associated action plan has been produced in close collaboration with 
Council Directorates who have each developed their own Workforce Strategies 
and Action Plans and, by agreement, the new Strategy for People sets out the 
council-wide actions they are seeking. 
 

134



 

Performance Issues 
 
The new Strategy for People and the associated action plan seek to directly 
address and achieve improvements in the following performance indicators  
 
Indicator 2009/10 

Target 
Performance London Council 

Average 
Sickness 
Absence – 
average days per 
FTE 

8.00 7.58 at Q3, 
2009/10. 
Performance will 
be at a higher 
level than this by 
year-end as there 
is typically higher 
levels of absence 
in Q4 

9.4 (2008/09) 

The proportion of 
BAME 
appointments 
reflects the % of 
working age (18- 
65) people from 
BAME’s in the 
local community. 

51.44% 43.4% for 
2008/09 

N/A 

The % of 
employees 
declaring a 
disability in the 
total workforce 
(as recorded in 
SAP) 
(headcount) 

3.0% 2.08% for 
2008/09 

N/A 

 
Improving management of sickness absence was a key element in the Strategy 
for People 2006/09 and sickness absence performance has significantly 
improved from an average of 10.34 days per person in 2006/07 to 8.73 days in 
2008/09. 
 
Q3 performance data indicates the Council is on track to achieve its target of 8 
days in 2009/10.  Maintaining this rate of improvement will be challenging and 
the new Strategy for People focuses on achieving this through improving staff 
motivation. 
 
Action to improve the diversity of the Council’s workforce also features strongly in 
the new Strategy for People with the objective of increasing the numbers of 
employees from groups that are disproportionately under- represented compared 
to the local community. 

135



 

 
The Council’s people management strategy will be assessed as part of the Audit 
Commissions Use of Resources assessment; specifically under Key Line Of 
Enquiry 3.3. The organisation is forward looking as it plans, organises and 
develops its workforce and information technology to support the achievement of 
its strategic priorities 
 
The new Strategy for People has been developed so that it supports the 
Council’s objective to achieve at least level 3 for KLOE 3.3. 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
None 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
There are no direct financial implications as the costs of implementation will be met 
from planned budget provision. 
 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
The new Strategy for People has been developed to support achievement of the 
Corporate Priorities and the Council’s vision to be recognised as one of the best 
London Council’s by 2012. 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Lesley Clarke, HRD Strategy Manager, 0208 420 9309 
 
 
Background Papers:  Strategy for People 2006-09 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/557/strategy_for_people 
 
 

136



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Harrow Council 
 
 

Strategy for People 
 
 

2010 - 2012 
 

 

 

 

137



 

2 
 

 

138



 

3 
 

Contents 
 
Foreword from Michael Lockwood, Chief Executive    4 
 
Framework for this Strategy        6 
 
Context           7 

1. Better Deal for Residents       8 
2. Council Vision and Priorities      11 
3. Staff Survey 2009      12  
4. Council Workforce Profile at 31 December 2009  14  
5. Current workforce performance    17 

 
 

Key Workforce Objectives to Address    18 
 
Action Plan         20 

 
 
 

139



 

4 
 

Photo  
 

Foreword from Michael Lockwood, Chief Executive 
The Strategy for People 2010-12, replaces the 2006-09 Strategy and sets out the 
next steps in developing our workforce to achieve our vision ‘To be recognised as 
one of the best London Councils by 2012’. 
When I joined the Council in 2007, work was already underway implementing the 
2006-09 Strategy for People to make sure we had the right people, with the right 
skills, in the right jobs, at the right time to deliver the Council’s vision. 
Significant elements of my ‘nine step’ plan and the wider Council Improvement 
Programme built on this work and today we are recognised as one of the most 
improved councils in London and one of the fastest improving nationally. 
In 2009, we were runner up for the Municipal Journal ‘Best achieving Council’ award 
and have been shortlisted as finalists for the ‘Most Improved Council’ in the Local 
Government Chronicle Awards 2010.  A host of other awards have also been 
secured. 
We have made improvements and progress in every area of the Council’s work and, 
in December 2009, the Audit Commission recognised our achievements in its 
‘Organisational Assessment’ when it found that overall the Council performed well, 
with a score of 3 out of 4.   
We are one of only a small number of local authorities across the UK to have 
improved under the new inspection regime and in its report the Audit Commission 
identified that Harrow Council: 

• Provides good value for money 
• Invests in clear priorities – those that residents want to see improved – 

cleaner and safer streets, building stronger communities and improving 
support for vulnerable people  

• Has improved in two-thirds of our performance measures 
• Has managed a difficult financial position and strengthened its financial 

reserves 
• Has achieved substantial savings (£45m over the last 3 years) 
• Put in place the foundations for becoming a high performing authority. 

140



 

5 
 

 
Importantly, residents are also noticing the difference and despite worsening 
economic conditions, satisfaction has risen by 6% since May 2007. 
This success has been built on our investment in and commitment from the 
workforce and these outcomes could not have been achieved without their efforts.  
This is supported by our latest staff survey which showed that in virtually all areas, 
staff felt improvements had been made.  Specifically: 

• understanding of Harrow Council's strategic direction and corporate priorities 
improved from 45% to 53% 

• understanding how individual’s work objectives fitted with corporate priorities, 
improved from 47% to 57% 

• commitment to delivering Harrow's objectives increased from 64% to 71% 
• overall satisfaction with working for Harrow Council, increased from 50% to 

61% and; 
• advocacy of the council as an employer improved from 34% to 48%. 

We have achieved a great deal, but we still have more to do to achieve the Council’s 
vision and we must do it in the context of the continuing need to reduce costs and 
manage the increasing expectations of our residents.  This will mean significant 
change, which will impact on all areas of the Council. 
Through our ‘Better Deal for Residents’ programme we will develop and implement 
new ways of working.  Engaging with and involving partners from the public, private 
and voluntary sectors to deliver improved services that offer residents even better 
value for money.  
This new Strategy for People 2010-12 supports this phase of change and, in 
particular, the ‘Better Deal for Residents’ programme, and sets out the next steps in 
our journey in developing the performance and capability of our workforce and the 
effectiveness of managers to meet these challenges. 
  
 

141



 

6 
 

Framework for this Strategy 
The framework below was developed and launched by the Improvement & 
Development Agency in August 2009.  It captures all those elements required for 
organisational development.  It provides an overarching framework to this Strategy 
that will ensure that all initiatives and activities are focused on achieving the 
Council’s vision. 
The Better Deal for Residents programme is focussed on identifying the Right Thing 
in the Right Way in order to achieve the Right Vision.  The other elements of the 
framework are those focussed on people management and development. 

142



 

7 
 

Context 
The context for this Strategy comprises five significant drivers: 
1. The Better Deal for Residents programme 
2. The Council’s vision and corporate priorities 
3. The views of council staff and managers  
4. The Council’s workforce profile 
5. Current workforce performance 
In addition, the views of the Corporate Strategy Board and the Directorate workforce 
strategies and action plans are summarised in the Key Workforce Objectives on 
page 18.  
Each of these is described briefly below. 

143



 

8 
 

1. Better Deal for Residents 
The current economic climate is affecting all sectors and residents alike.  This, 
together with our drive for continuous improvement in both services and customer 
satisfaction levels has led to our Better Deal for Residents programme where officers 
are currently exploring a range of options, in partnership wherever possible, to 
address the growth in costs anticipated in the next few years whilst the level of 
income into the council is expected to fall.   Following the local elections in May 
2010, the Council’s administration will have a range of options to consider in meeting 
this challenge. 
The Better Deal for Residents programme will, in the first instance, include a 
fundamental review of how the council can deliver more integrated services to local 
taxpayers across all the public sector partners in the borough. It will focus on how 
the council can better align services with residents' needs, whilst being more cost 
effective.  The programme’s specific objectives are to: 

• Deliver the Harrow Strategic Partnership vision for Harrow as set out in 
the Sustainable Community Strategy 

• Deliver a balanced budget in the medium term and make a significant 
contribution to 2010/11 budget 

• Enable continuous improvement – to continue and accelerate the service 
improvements we have made over recent years 

• Manage the increasing expectations of residents – our customers expect 
comprehensive, value for money services with no increases in their council 
tax    

Implications for this workforce strategy 
The impact of the Better Deal for Residents programme, both in the process of 
change from the current models of delivery to new, and in meeting the programme’s 
objectives will be felt by all council staff, regardless of level or role. 
Although it is still too early to identify the specific new delivery models and therefore 
the effect on individual members of staff, it can be anticipated that there will be a 
combination of different models which may include joint delivery of some services 
with partners, delivery by private, public or third sector providers, shared services 
and so on.  This, together with the scale of change, indicates the following emerging 
implications: 

144



 

9 
 

Right People 
1. The development of more sophisticated and fit-for-purpose workforce 

planning techniques cross-council so that future changes can be predicted, 
planned for, and met in an Actively ‘One’ Council way and potentially across 
different providers.   

2. It is recognised that outsourcing of some services, improving service 
efficiency and terminating some other services will lead to a change of 
employer or staff at risk of redundancy.  We will also need to view employees 
of partner organisations (statutory and commercial) as part of a wider 
workforce.  

3. To seek, wherever possible, to redeploy staff if their jobs are at risk and to 
provide outplacement support where we are unable to do so 

Right Skills 
4. A need to continue to build the effectiveness of managers at all levels in the 

leadership, management and consistent practice in change and performance 
management; that all managers provide inspiration and take and provide 
opportunities to “Energise and improve”.  This will be achieved through 
development and enabling tools. 

5. To continue to provide opportunities to staff in developing skills for the role 
they currently fill, to expand their skill base so that they can be deployed more 
readily across a broader range of roles and to experience and welcome 
change.  This will continue to develop organisational capacity and capability, 
enable the Council to be more flexible in deploying staff resources and better 
secures sustainable employability for staff. 

6. To develop strategic, joint commissioning and partnership skills in middle and 
senior managers – if whole services are delivered jointly or procured (rather 
than delivered directly), managers must be able to commission, manage, 
monitor and review delivery so that best value for money is achieved in 
providing services to Harrow 

Right motivation 
7. To improve our management and development of employee performance.  
8. To improve our performance in engaging staff in the development of change 

options and their implementation  
9. A need to continue to embed and reinforce the culture change needed to 

meet the CREATE values, particularly, in all change management activities 

145



 

10 
 

Right way 
10. To further enable flexible and mobile working – a smaller civic centre or 

shared with others, a reduction in the number of council premises, 
modernising and making more efficient working practices – requires a step 
change in the current work in introducing new technologies to achieve 
efficiencies and modifying working practices on a more significant scale 

At the same time as this change programme, services need to continue to be 
delivered and developed and staff must feel confident and able to do so with the 
understanding that change is being managed well. 
In all that we do, there is a need to build stronger partnerships so that the initial 
themes identified above and the others that emerge can be managed and met more 
effectively 
It is anticipated that the range of issues that the Better Deal for Residents 
programme will raise will require that this Strategy be reviewed during 2010 to 
ensure it is fit for purpose.  The current actions identified in the Action Plan will 
continue to build the strong foundation we require for a highly performing council and 
for a Better Deal for Residents future.   The review will additionally include actions 
beyond 2012. 
 
 

146



 

11 
 

2. Council’s Vision and Corporate Priorities 
The Council’s Vision and Corporate Priorities provides direction and clear priorities 
for council staff. 
The Sustainable Community Strategy is developed by the Harrow Strategic 
Partnership together with the local community, local agencies, stakeholders and 
residents involved in identifying its priorities.  
The Strategy shows how the organisation’s making up the Harrow Strategic 
Partnership will try to shape the effects of global, national, regional and local trends 
and events to work towards successful outcomes for Harrow. These successful 
outcomes include making Harrow a better place to live and work over the long term.  
It covers a range of issues and it sets out aspirations for each of them. Overall, its 
direction can be summed up as:  
By 2020, Harrow will be recognised for:  

• Integrated and co-ordinated quality services, many of which focus on 
preventing problems from arising, especially for vulnerable groups, and all of 
which put users in control, offering access and choice; 

• Environmental and community sustainability, because we actively manage our 
impact on the environment and have supported inclusive communities which 
provide the jobs, homes, education, healthcare, transport and other services 
all citizens need. 

• Improving the quality of life, by reducing inequalities, empowering the 
community voice and promoting respect and becoming the safest borough in 
London.  

The Council’s vision is to be recognised as one of the best London Councils by 
2012, in a borough that is cosmopolitan, confident and cohesive.  
The Council has adopted the following Corporate Priorities for 2009/10:  
1. Deliver cleaner and safer streets,  
2. Improve support for vulnerable people,  
3. Building stronger communities. 

147



 

12 
 

3. Staff survey 2009 
The Council carries out a bi-annual staff survey with the last conducted in November 
2009.  An interim survey focussed on particular issues was also carried out in Spring 
2009. 
The annual surveys, carried out with the support of The Work Foundation, have 
enabled us to monitor staff perception on a broad range of issues and identify where, 
in their view, we have progressed in meeting their expectations, and where we need 
to do more. 
The response rate to the November 2009 survey was the highest achieved to-date. 
57% of staff responded which compares very favourably with typical response rates 
for other organisations and demonstrates an increasing level of engagement. 
Encouragingly, 84% of the indicators showed an improvement in staff perception 
with 31% showing a significant improvement.  Nine indicators, in particular, exceed 
those for other public sector organisations using The Work Foundation for their staff 
surveys. 
The Work Foundation use an engagement index, also used by other organisations, 
which allows us to measure the level of employee engagement with the council, 
track that over time (see chart below) and compare engagement with other 
organisations.  This level of employee engagement demonstrates a step-change in 
staff perception and a clear link to the improving council performance. 

 
 

63%

7%

70%

10%

2% 28%

1%

19%

Disengaged
Disenchanted
Enrolled
Engaged

2009 2008

148



 

13 
 

Key strengths 
The key strengths identified through this staff survey are that staff feel well informed 
about the Council; they believe reward and recognition systems are fair and 
transparent; they are confident they are meeting the needs of our customers; they 
have the opportunity for personal growth and development; and that the council is 
good at managing change.  These indicators now exceed The Work Foundation’s 
benchmark for public sector organisations. 
There have also been significant improvements in other indicators:   

• Advocacy of the council as an employer has improved from 34% to 48% 
• An increase from 64% to 71% saying they are committed to delivering 

Harrow's objectives 
• Overall satisfaction with working for Harrow Council, from 50% to 61% 
• Understanding of Harrow Council's strategic direction and corporate priorities, 

from 45% to 53% 
• Understanding how individual’s work objectives fit into corporate priorities, 

from 47% to 57%. 
 
Key areas to improve 
There were 2 indicators that had decreased that we need to address both of which 
relate to the Council’s Individual Appraisal and Development (IPAD) Scheme.  The 
first related to meaningful discussion being held between staff and managers on the 
work objectives for the year; the second on meeting agreed development needs.  
There has been significant development for staff and managers throughout the year 
including briefings and skills workshops for over 700 managers and staff on the IPAD 
scheme.  Nevertheless, both these issues require further action based on this 
feedback from staff and managers. 
There were other factors that also merit attention.  Although, the perceptions of staff 
had improved in how the Council manages changes and in the effectiveness of 
senior management, the extent of change through the Better Deal for Residents 
programme demands that there is strong leadership and management of change.  
Both of these factors are addressed in the Action Plan. 

149



 

14 
 

 
4. Workforce Profile at 31 December 2009 
Gender and Implications for this Strategy 
 
Three-quarters of the workforce are women.  This pattern of a higher representation 
than the local community has been evident for many years.  The chart below shows 
that women are represented predominantly in the lower paybands with a sharp 
decline between paybands 5 and 6. The salary ranges for these paybands are 
shown on page 18.    Action to understand why there is a declining proportion of 
women in higher paybands will be taken as well action to address the issues 
identified. 

83%

17%

74%

26%

75%

25%

67%

33%

58%

42%

27%

73%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

% 
of 

Em
plo

ye
es

Payband 1 (%) Payband 2 (%) Payband 3 (%) Payband 4 (%) Payband 5 (%) Payband 6 (%)

Gender by Payband in Harrow Council
 as at 31 December 2009

Female
Male

 

Age and Implications for this Strategy 
The age profile of the Council, highlights that the Council does not employ any staff 
below the age of 20 with 70% of the workforce aged 40 or over.  The increasingly 
aging workforce will lead to high turnover in future years and potentially high 
numbers of vacancies, increasing costs of temporary / agency cover and recruitment 
and retention difficulties.  Plans to start to address this position are reflected in the 
Action Plan. 
As a consequence of rising unemployment of young people, the need to provide 
clear routes into council employment and to, in part, address the council’s aging 
workforce, the implementation of an Apprenticeship scheme is reflected in the Plan. 

150



 

15 
 

20 to 29
13%

30 to 39
20%

40 to 49
30%

50 to 59
28%

60+
9%16 to 19

0%

Age in Harrow Council as at 31 December 2009
No

97.94%

Unknown
0.36%

Yes
1.70%

Disability in Harrow Council as at 31 December 2009

 
 
Disability and Implications for this Strategy 
Council staffing records show a decline in the number of disabled people employed.  
This is somewhat contradicted by the staff survey where 8% of respondents stated 
that they were disabled.  Action to firstly identify the actual numbers of disabled 
people employed will be taken and thereafter, further action taken, wherever 
possible, to retain in employment those who become disabled.  The proportion of 
disabled people that apply for jobs with the council is low at 4% of applicants for the 
year to 31 March 2009.  Action to encourage applications from disabled people will 
be taken as well as improving the recruitment experience for them. 
 
 
Ethnicity and Implications for this Strategy 
The Council, year-on-year, shows an increasing proportion (one-third) of the 
workforce made up of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) staff.  The chart 
below shows that the majority of these staff are represented in the lower paybands 
with decreasing levels of representation until an increase is evident at payband 6. 
Monitoring of the outcomes of recruitment and selection processes shows that 50% 
of the internal promotions made during 2008/09 were of BAME staff.  However, the 
proportion of externally recruited BAME people has fallen to 42% of appointments.   
Action to understand why external BAME applicants are less successful than internal 
BAME staff will be taken as well as action to address the issues found.   

151



 

16 
 

50%

38%

11%

1%

59%

31%

9%

1%

66%

26%

7%
1%

73%

23%

3%1%

88%

7% 4%
1%

80%

13%
7%

0%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

% 
of 

Em
plo

ye
es

Payband 1 (%) Payband 2 (%) Payband 3 (%) Payband 4 (%) Payband 5 (%) Payband 6 (%)

Ethnicity by Payband in Harrow Council
 as at 31 December 2009

White
BAME
Unknown
Unclassified

 

 

Religion and belief and sexuality and Implications for this Strategy 
The Council does not currently hold data on the religion or belief held by staff nor on their 
sexuality.  The Action Plan will address this. 

152



 

17 
 

Paybands – with effect from 1st April 2009  
Payband Salary in £s Broadly equivalent to 

and will include 
Band 1 Up to 18,582 H1 to H3 

Band 2  18,583 - 30,390 H4 to H8 

Band 3  30,391 - 41,610 H9 to H11 

Band 4  41,611 - 60,057 SPM3 – SPM5 

Band 5  60,058 - 92,892 SPM1 – SPM2 

Band 6 92,893 and above Directors and above 
   
 
H grades - Harrow pay spine 
 

5. Current workforce performance 
Sickness Absence 
The development and launch of the “Absence Matters” improvement programme in 
2007 has seen sickness absence fall from an average of 10.34 days per full-time 
equivalent person in 2006/07 to 8.73 days in 2008/09.  Although there has been an 
increase in short-term sickness absence during 2009 (anticipated to be a 
consequence of absence due to or concerns around swine flu), it is considered that 
the average of 8.73 days will reduce further in 2009/10.   
Individual Performance Appraisal and Development (IPAD) 
Although the staff survey indicates that we have further work to do to properly embed 
the IPAD scheme, Directorates reported at 31 December 2009 that 81% of staff had 
had an IPAD meeting during the year. Extending the scheme to all staff in all 
Directorates and to improve it’s effectiveness as a performance and developmental 
tool is anticipated will lead to further improvements in council performance.  This 
therefore features in the Action Plan. 

153



 

18 
 

Key workforce objectives to address 
In considering the context above as well as the workforce issues from each of the 
Directorate Workforce Strategies and Action Plans, the Corporate Strategy Board 
have agreed on the following key workforce objectives for this Strategy.   
Right People 

• To effectively plan for and meet future workforce requirements,  different 
service delivery models, the wider workforce across partner organisations, 
the increasing expectations of our customers as well as the changing 
workforce profile - in age and the drive to improve the representation of 
minority groups in the workforce.   

Right Skills 
• To continue to improve the skills, abilities and capacity of senior and 

middle management to effectively and ambitiously drive forward the 
change required by the Better Deal for Residents programme whilst 
working in partnership with others.  

• To develop the skill sets of managers in change management, commercial 
commissioning and management, partnership working and continuous 
improvement required for strong partnerships with statutory, commercial 
and third sector bodies 

• To provide development for staff that enables them to adapt to changing 
environments, to enhance their performance and continue to improve 
service delivery. 

Right motivation 
• To enhance, cross-council, the way change is implemented so that it 

ensures the opportunity for staff to contribute to the change process whilst 
being effectively supported through it. 

• To continue to implement technological solutions which enable monitoring 
and improvements to workflow process so as to improve productivity and 
performance and efficiency whilst providing motivation through sound 
people and performance management, the IPAD scheme and recognition 
and appropriate reward schemes. 

• To maintain our focus on improving staff wellbeing 

154



 

19 
 

Right way 
• To enable changes in ways of working to achieve efficient services.  This 

includes the introduction of new technology and remote and mobile 
working. 

Right culture 
• To work closely with partner organisations on workforce issues, 

recognising the increasingly joint approach to service delivery 
• To further embed the CREATE values 

 
These key objectives are set out, together with actions to address them in the 
remainder of this Strategy. 

155



 

20 
 

Right people 2010-2012 
Key objective:   To effectively plan for and meet future workforce requirements,  different service delivery models, the wider  
   workforce across partner organisations, the increasing expectations of our customers as well as the changing 
   workforce profile - in age and the drive to improve the representation of minority groups in the workforce.   
 
Sub-objectives: 

• Workforce issues are addressed effectively and consistently at all times 
• Future workforce requirements are met  
• Recruitment and retention difficulties are proactively addressed to minimise the impact on services 
• Recruitment practices improve so that we employ the right workforce, at all levels, for future success 
• Resourcing processes improve and reduce costs in recruitment of permanent and temporary workers 
• Better workforce representation of minority groups is achieved at all levels 
• Wider working with partners on common workforce issues 
• Increased opportunities for those who are suffering worklessness 

156



 

21 
 

 
 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
Introduce a 
single provider 
for resourcing 
permanent and 
temporary 
workers 

• Clear Employer of Choice 
brand that promotes the 
Council as a place to work 

• More efficient and LEAN 
recruitment processes 

• Improved recruitment 
materials which promote 
the council 

• Proactive sourcing of 
candidates based on 
predicted patterns of 
demand 

• Proactive sourcing by 
provider to ensure that 
disabled applicants are 
attracted to apply  

• Improved Management 
Information 

• Effective relationship and 

• On-line advertising 
• On-line tracking of 

progress of application by 
candidates 

• Available to partners and 
meets their requirements 

• Competency framework 
for use in resourcing, 
recruitment, performance 
management and staff 
and manager 
development 

• Measures implemented to 
reduce inefficient use of 
agency workers  

• Measures implemented to 
meet the requirements of 
the Agency Workers 
Directive  

• Reduced management 
and administration time 
in filling vacancies 

• Reduced time to fill 
vacancies – process 
from initiation of 
recruitment to post 
filled, on average, is 
less than 10 weeks 

• Improved attraction and 
job fill rates for hard-to-
fill roles 

• Reduced agency worker 
costs – initially spend to 
fall below £10m per 
annum 

• Improved perceptions of 
Council as an Employer 
of Choice – increase in 
proportion of staff 
advocating the council 

Organisational 
Development  

157



 

22 
 

 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
contract management 
arrangements are in place 

 as an employer from 
48% to 60% (staff 
survey + candidate 
surveys) 

• Effective management 
of risks associated with 
Agency Worker 
Directive resulting in 
minimal costs arising 

Introduce 
focussed 
recruitment and 
retention 
measures for 
hard to fill jobs 

• Clear strategy and plan to 
address the issues, both 
in recruitment and 
retention, working in 
partnership with others to 
avoid competitive 
practices wherever 
possible 

• Improve system for 
capturing of reasons for 
leaving the council (Exit 
questionnaires) 

• Review and update 
strategy and plan to 
ensure actions continue 
to meet the needs for 
effective staff resourcing 
in these areas 

• Improvements in 
recruitment and 
retention rates 

• Planning is effective in 
identifying and 
addressing potential 
resourcing difficulties  

• Less reliance on agency 
workers and 
consequently reduced 
costs 

• Improved understanding 

Organisational 
Development  - 
development  / 
HRD Business 
Partners team 
- 
implementation 

158



 

23 
 

 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
of reasons why staff 
leave 

Introduce clear 
and effective 
measures to 
address 
workforce 
redeployment 

• Improved performance in 
redeploying staff with the 
skills required for changed 
roles 

• Effective transition and 
outplacement support 
where required 

 

• Partners engaged to 
ensure actions taken are 
mutually supportive and 
beneficial 

 

• Improved redeployment 
levels 

• Minimised costs arising 
from redundancy or 
severance 

• Perceptions of staff in 
how the council 
manages change 
improves from 27% to 
35% 

Organisational 
Development  - 
development  / 
HRD Business 
Partners – 
implementation 

Improve 
performance on 
equalities and 
diversity in 
employment 
and address 
issues arising 
from aging 
workforce 

• Achievement of the 
highest standards in the 
Equalities Framework 

• Implement workforce 
actions required as a 
result of the Equalities Act 

• Positive action 
programmes in place for 

• Improved age diversity of 
the workforce 

• Employee social identity 
is updated and 
maintained and extended 
to include sexuality and 
religion / belief 

• Equal Pay Auditing 

• More diverse workforce 
at all levels based on 
progression towards the 
targets in the Annual 
Equalities report 

• Evidence of fair 
treatment of all staff, 
regardless of social 
identity – proportions of 

Organisational 
Development    
/ Directorates 

159



 

24 
 

 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
promotion and 
development to achieve a 
workforce that is 
representative at all levels 

• Agency worker social 
identity is captured to 
include in the Council’s 
Annual Equalities in 
Employment report 

• Establish a sub-group of 
the Corporate Equalities 
Group to identify 
initiatives and actions to 
improve council 
performance in equalities 
in employment. 

demonstrates continuing 
fair reward practice 

• Annual Council Equalities 
in Employment Action 
Plan and work with 
Directorates to ensure 
Directorate Equalities in 
Employment Action Plans 
are addressing local 
issues 

 

staff raising grievances 
of subject to other 
processes is consistent 
with the workforce 
profile 

Ensure 
effective 
partnership 
working with 
the Local 
Employment 

• The work and initiatives of 
the Regeneration Unit are 
supported in identifying 
good people management 
practice in addressing 
worklessness 

• Apprenticeships scheme 
implemented to address 
unemployment amongst 
young people, working in 
partnership with others to 
maximise opportunities 

• Improved understanding 
by managers of the LEP 
and Job Brokerage 
Scheme 

• Improved performance 
as a Council in 

Organisational 
Development  - 
development  / 
Directorates - 
employment 

160



 

25 
 

 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
Partnership 
(LEP) 

• Improve perceptions, 
understanding and 
abilities of the Job 
Brokerage scheme to 
meet the needs of internal 
staff seeking 
redeployment and 
external people seeking 
employment 

• Briefings for managers on 
the range of employment 
initiatives available as 
options to them, e.g. 
Xcite, Future Jobs Fund, 
Apprenticeships  

for jobs and funding employing those 
suffering worklessness 
– meet LAA targets 

Development of 
Workforce 
planning 
practices 

• Directorate workforce 
planning identifies future 
workforce needs whilst 
tackling current workforce 
issues 

• Development of 
integrated service, budget 

• Improved analysis tools 
are implemented for 
managers in identifying 
key workforce issues 

• Workforce planning 
provides for succession 
planning 

• Managers are using 
workforce planning 
toolkits to support the 
development of their 
Service and Budget 
plans to better assure 
service delivery  

Organisational 
Development  - 
development  / 
Directorates 

161



 

26 
 

 Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
and workforce planning 
(including learning and 
development planning) is 
supported 

• On-line and easily 
accessible workforce 
reports for managers that 
meet their needs 
commence roll out 

• Mutually beneficial 
partnership working is in 
place to identify where 
action can be taken more 
effectively together on 
common challenges; to 
make best use of 
resources and to develop 
common standards 
across services 

• Optimisation of 
workforce deployment 
and co-ordinated and 
prioritised development 
activity cross-council 
(and cross-partner) 
wherever possible 

• Managers are able to 
access workforce 
management 
information directly 
through SAP 

• Major change 
programmes identify the 
workforce requirements 
and ensure that change 
is embedded  

• Partnership working on 
common workforce 
issues 

 

162



 

27 
 

Image - Right skills triangle 
Key objectives: 

• To continue to improve the skills, abilities and capacity of senior and middle management to effectively and ambitiously 
drive forward the change required by the Better Deal for Residents programme whilst working in partnership with others.  

• To develop the skill sets of managers in change management, commercial commissioning and management, partnership 
working and continuous improvement required for strong partnerships with statutory, commercial and third sector bodies 

• To provide development for staff that enables them to adapt to changing environments, to enhance their performance 
and continue to improve service delivery. 

 
Sub-objectives: 
 

• Staff have the skills needed for the jobs they are required to do 
• Career development is promoted and assisted through coaching, mentoring, shadowing and secondment schemes, in 

partnership wherever possible 
• There are clear career pathways and succession planning in place, in partnership wherever possible 
• Strong and effective leaders and managers are developed 
• Structured professional qualification strategies and personal development opportunities are developed based on Council 

objectives 
• E-learning, opportunities are extended to staff, in partnership wherever possible 

163



 

28 
 

 
Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 

2011/12 
Success measures Action owner 

Ensure Learning 
& Development 
Strategy and 
Framework is in 
place cross-
council 

• Learning & Development 
Strategy and Framework 
implemented so that from 
2010, decisions on 
development of staff are 
managed consistently in 
accordance with the 
priorities outlined within 
them 

 • Learning and 
development 
decisions are based 
on organisational 
need in accordance 
with the agreed 
hierarchy set out in 
the Framework 

• Learning and 
Development spend 
demonstrates it is 
directed towards the 
priorities identified 

HRD Business 
Partners  / 
Directorates 
 

Achieve Council-
wide accreditation 
as an Investor in 
People 

• Gap analysis completed 
and action plan in place to 
address 

• Investors in 
People 
accreditation 
achieved in 2012 

• The award is 
achieved 

Organisational 
Development – co-
ordination / HRD 
Business Partners – 
directorate support / 
Directorates – 
implement actions to 

164



 

29 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 
2011/12 

Success measures Action owner 

address gaps 
Continue 
leadership and 
management 
development, in 
partnership 
wherever possible 

• Design, develop and 
launch the Management 
Development Practitioners 
Programme  

• Design, develop and 
launch the 2010 
development programme 
for the Corporate 
Leadership Group 

• Development of current 
and future critical skills -  
partnership working, 
strategic commissioning, 
management of multi-
agency teams, client side 
management, financial 
management, customer 
service management, 
managing and promoting 
diversity and best practice 

• Effective 
partnership 
working to identify 
common 
development 
opportunities 

• Clear and 
structured 
development plan 
for new managers 
through the 
combined 
Management 
Induction and 
Foundation 
development 
programme and 
the Practitioner 
programme 

• Improving Council 
performance  in it’s 
Performance 
Indicators  

• Accreditation with 
the Institute for 
Leadership and 
Management for 
Management 
Development 
Practitioners 
Programme 

• Staff perception of 
senior and middle 
management 
effectiveness and in 
organisational 
management of 
change improves 
(staff survey) 

Organisational 
Development 

165



 

30 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 
2011/12 

Success measures Action owner 

people and performance 
management – offering this 
to partners wherever 
possible 

• Combined Management 
Induction and Management 
Development Foundation 
programmes  

• Other Management 
Development provision 
reviewed to determine 
whether it is fit for purpose 
(e.g. CMS, DMS, Future 
Leaders Programme) 

• External recognition 
that the council has 
effective leadership 
and management 
(CAA) 

 

Support Member 
Induction and 
Development 

• Member Induction in 2010 
and ongoing development 
through a programme of 
activity is effectively 
supported 

 

• Ongoing Member 
development is 
supported 

• Maintain member 
development charter 
status 

Organisational 
Development 

166



 

31 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 
2011/12 

Success measures Action owner 

Establish and 
maintain on-line 
Learning & 
Development 
administration 
system using 
Coursebooker 

• Externally provided, 
efficient and effective,  
administration  

• All services are able to 
easily use the system for 
90% of course 
requirements 

 

• Provision is 
reviewed and 
modified to ensure 
service continues 
to meet the needs 
of services 

• Work with partners 
to extend the 
system to them, if 
they wish 

• Improved L&D  
management 
information 

• Improved value for 
money in learning 
and development 
spend – directed to 
priorities in the 
Learning & 
Development 
framework and 
supports significant 
change exercises 

• Joint L&D activities 
with partner 
agencies utilise  
Coursebooker  

Organisational 
Development 

Develop self-
sufficiency for 
managers in 
effective people 

• Manager’s Directory  and 
toolkits for managers 
launched and are used and 
viewed as an effective 

• The range of e-
learning packages 
is extended to 
managers to better 

• Managers manage 
people issues more 
effectively and 
consistently without 

Organisational 
Development – 
development / HRD 
Business Partners - 

167



 

32 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 
2011/12 

Success measures Action owner 

management enabling tool support them in 
people 
management 

the requirement for 
support at earlier 
stages of people 
management 
processes 

implementation 

Provide 
opportunities for 
development 
through 
secondments and 
shadowing and 
similar 

• A robust and fair 
secondment and 
shadowing scheme is 
introduced; the mentoring 
and coaching scheme is 
promoted, with partners 
wherever possible 

 • Increased take-up of 
secondment and 
shadowing 
opportunities 

• Increased 
participation in 
mentoring and 
coaching schemes 

Organisational 
Development – 
development / HRD 
Business Partners - 
implementation 

Develop and 
introduce 
succession 
planning, 
wherever possible 
in partnership 

• Career pathways are 
identified and succession 
planning implemented 

• Career pathways 
and succession 
planning take 
account of 
partners wherever 
possible 

• Clearer career 
pathways across 
partner agencies 

• Increased cross-
transfer 
opportunities 
between agencies 

Organisational 
Development  

168



 

33 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 
2011/12 

Success measures Action owner 

Explore funding 
opportunities to 
extend the 
Learning 4, 
qualification 
based, 
programme 

• Funding streams identified 
and optimised in order to 
offer qualification 
development as widely as 
possible 

• Explore further 
development of NVQ 
(Diplomas from 2010) 
programmes with partners  

 • Further development 
of staff  through 
achievement of 
National Vocational  
Qualifications or 
Diplomas – 
development offered 
to a further 200 staff 

Organisational 
Development  

169



 

34 
 

Image - Right motivation rectangle 
Key objectives: 

• To enhance, cross-council, the way change is implemented so that it ensures the opportunity for staff to contribute to the 
change process whilst being effectively supported through it. 

• To continue to implement technological solutions which enable monitoring and improvements to workflow process so as 
to improve productivity and performance and efficiency whilst providing motivation through sound people and 
performance management, the IPAD scheme and recognition and appropriate reward schemes. 

• To maintain our focus on improving staff wellbeing 
Sub-objectives: 

• The council is an Employer of Choice where staff advocate the council as one of the best employers in London 
• Staff benefits are highly valued, demonstrate modern practices and offer employees choice 
• Wellbeing initiatives improve the wellbeing of staff and managers 
• The ‘Reward package’, in it’s entirety, encourages motivated employees who are willing to go the ‘extra mile’ and  

develop their performance 
• Staff feel valued and able to influence and contribute to improving the performance of the council 
• Managers have access to on-line resources and appropriate learning and development to facilitate effective management 

of change 
• Staff are engaged, able to contribute to the success of and are supported through organisational change and 

development  

170



 

35 
 

 
Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
Develop Total 
Reward 

• Clear communication to the 
workforce and candidates on 
the Council’s Total Reward 
approach that acts to motivate 
and engage 

• Improved Reward and 
Recognition options that  
encourage and reward 
innovation and performance 

• Total Reward 
statements introduced 
that enable employees 
to see the full value of 
their reward package 

 

• Reduced turnover 
in those areas 
where jobs are hard 
to fill and retain 
staff 

• Improved staff 
morale (measured 
through staff 
surveys) 

Organisational 
Development / Shared 
Services 

Develop 
performance 

• Individual Performance 
Appraisal and Development 
scheme further developed and 
implemented ensuring it 
provides for constructive 
debate between managers 
and their staff on objectives 
and their achievement, the 
CREATE values and how they 
are applied and on 
development that meets 
requirements for effective 

• On-line process 
implemented which is 
easy for staff and 
managers to use; 
captures key information 
for succession planning, 
corporate course 
provision (where 
appropriate) and 
monitoring of outcomes 
to identify patterns and 
trends 

• Improved 
perceptions by staff 
and managers of 
IPAD 

• More staff agree 
constructive 
conversations are 
held on 
performance (staff 
survey) 

• Improvements in 

Organisational 
Development 

171



 

36 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
performance 

 
staff performance 

Staff Survey  • Bi-annual staff survey 
conducted to monitor 
staff views and take 
action corporately and 
within Directorates to 
address issues raised 

• More staff agree 
that the council 
takes improvement 
action as a result of 
the staff survey 
(staff survey) 

• Improved 
perceptions of 
Council as an 
Employer of Choice 
(staff survey) 

Organisational 
Development – co-
ordination of survey, 
reporting on outcomes, 
corporate action / 
Directorates – address 
areas for action 
identified 

Staff induction • Staff induction reviewed and 
relaunched so that it provides 
a motivational and informative 
corporate introduction to the 
Council 

 

 • Low turnover 
among new 
starters. 

• Improved 
engagement 
among new starters 
(staff survey) 

Organisational 
Development 

172



 

37 
 

Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
Maintain 
reduction in 
sickness 
absence 

• Maintain monitoring and 
reporting arrangements 

• Provide support and briefings 
as required to managers in 
effectively managing staff 
sickness absence 

• Maintain monitoring and 
reporting arrangements 

• Provide support and 
briefings as required to 
managers in effectively 
managing staff sickness 
absence 

• Maintaining 
sickness absence 
levels at an 
average of 8 
working days per 
Full Time 
Equivalent and 
below 

Organisational 
Development / HRD 
Business Partners 

Support 
organisational 
change 
initiatives 

• Support is provided to the 
Better Deal for Residents 
programme in order to 
achieve successful change 

• Improved staff engagement 
approaches are adopted so 
that all staff feel able to freely 
contribute views and opinions 
on potential areas of change 
and their implementation 

• The CREATE values are 
embedded in all change 
management processes 

• Support is provided in 
implementing the people 
aspects of the Transport 
and Parking review so 
that staff are 
encouraged to use 
alternative modes of 
transport to work 

•  

• Successful 
achievement of 
change according 
to the measures 
identified in the 
scope of each 
project 

HRD Business 
Partners – support to 
change initiatives / 
Organisational 
Development – 
changes to policy, 
corporate initiatives 
and staff engagement 
approaches 

 

173



 

38 
 

 
Image - Right way triangle 
Key objective: To enable changes in ways of working to achieve efficient services.  This includes the introduction of new 
technology and remote and mobile working. 
 
Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones for 2011/12 Success measures Action owner 
To enable changes in 
ways of working to achieve 
efficient services.  This 
includes the introduction of 
new technology and 
remote and mobile 
working. 

• Support is provided to the 
people aspects of further 
extending remote and mobile 
Working to support future 
changes to the council’s 
property portfolio and achieve 
improved work/life balance for 
staff 

 

• Employment contracts 
support the new ways 
of working required by 
the Better Deal for 
Residents programme 

 

• Remote and 
mobile working 
and employment 
contracts 
effectively 
implemented 

Organisational 
Development 

 

174



 

39 
 

Image – Right culture triangle 
Key objectives: 

• To work closely with partner organisations on workforce issues, recognising the increasingly joint approach to service 
delivery 

• To further embed the CREATE values 
 
Action Milestones for 2010/11 Milestones 

for 2011/12 
Success measures Action owner 

Support Directorates in 
embedding the CREATE 
values to achieve effective 
culture change 

• Develop  Best Practice 
guidance for Directorates 
on embedding the 
CREATE values 

 

 • Increased proportion 
of staff recognise and 
understand the 
values 

Organisational 
Development 

Achieve agreement on the 
CREATE values forming the 
basis of current and future 
partnership working 

• Achieve agreement on the 
CREATE values forming 
the basis of current and 
future partnership working 

 • Agreement reached Organisational 
Development / 
Procurement / 
Directorate leads 

175



 

40 
 

How we will monitor progress: 
1. Progress against the actions identified below will be reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Council Workforce Strategy Group 

which includes senior representatives of all Directorates 
2. Development and implementation of the Strategy for People is a key project in the Council’s Improvement Programme and will 

be reviewed monthly 
3. Success measures will be monitored on an annual basis, e.g. by monitoring the views of staff in the Staff Survey 
4. Key projects will be discussed with trade unions and self-organised groups at the Corporate Joint Committee and the sub-group 

of the Corporate Equalities Group  
5. Performance measures will be developed to enable a quantification of progress 
 
 
 
 
 

176


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Scrutiny Annual Report 2009/10
	Scrutiny annual report Appendix B

	9 INFORMATION REPORT - Extended Schools Review - Six Month Update
	$ExtendedSchoolsreview.docA.ps
	Extended Schools, 17/09/2009 Cabinet
	Extended Schools -O&S Min 563 - Scrutiny Review - Extended Schools as Community Resources, 17/09/2009 Cabinet
	Extended Schools - O&S Min 563 - ExtendedSchoolsReviewCoverReport, 17/09/2009 Cabinet
	What_is_a_good_Extended_Schools_draft_3.1
	Commmunity Lettings Action Plan report FINAL

	10 INFORMATION REPORT -  Strategy for People 2010-2012
	Cabinet Strategy for People 2010-2012


